ANZPNA 2017 AGM Agenda
Date: 06/09/2017, 0930-1100
Location: Meeting Room 3, Darwin convention centre

1. Apologies: Ian Hewitt, Chanel Prestidge, Hemant Kulkarni, David McCredie, Tonya Kara, Andrew Rosenberg, Richard Kitching, Gad Kainer, John Burke, John Knight, Frank Willis, Christine Mincham.
Present: Peter Trnka, Fiona Mackie, Josh Kausman, Lil Johnstone, Jonathon Craig, Sean Kennedy, Swasti Chaturvedi, Anna Francis, Michael Falk, Sally Kellet, Ashlene McKay, Maddie Disbury, Dhanusya Sivananthan
Phone: Nick Larkins, Amelia Le Page, Siah Kim, Cathy Quinlan, Stephen Alexander, Elisabeth Hodson, David Metz, Anne Durkan, Sharon Teo, Simon Carter

2. Welcome and confirmation of 2016 AGM minutes
Proposed: NL Seconded: Sean K Accepted without amendment
3. Conflict of interest: JK and AD expressed a conflict of interest item 17 d- new TMA guidelines as co-authors. JK and AD recused themselves during discussion of 17 d. 
4. Business arising from previous minutes
a. Website. NL 
The excellent work of NL was acknowledged by the group
b. Training issues:
i. 
Funding for webinar subscription. (See attached powerpoint Proposal by ST). 
These educational sessions have been designed and organised by the trainees and are well received. Approximately 13 have been participating. Sharon Teo (trainee) has been organising the monthly webinars and her excellent work was acknowledged. They are also recorded so that trainees not able to participate at the time, still have access. Webinars are paediatric specific in contrast to the educational content via ANZSN platform. The presentations are to be linked via the ANZPNA website. The current website has a file size limit and in order to obtain greater hosting capacity, the proposal was made to use Vimeo Pro at an approximate cost of $ 500 pa. CQ suggested Zoom could be used and provided free of charge via universities. However on further discussion it was not clear that all sites would have this available. Trainee access is to be password protected.  JC raised the issue of whether the entire program should be delivered via SPEC and their infrastructure.  Free access to all trainees (non-nephrology) was debated, included access to unit protocols. However there was general concern about patient access to different unit protocols and the anxiety that may cause if there was free access to all material.  JK stated that different silos of access will be created for different materials. There was general agreement by the group to support funding of the order of $500 pa for the project.



ii.Proposal to nominate trainee rep to coordinate meetings and upload presentations. JK requested that Sharon nominate a trainee representative to take over the organisation of the webinars for the next 12 months and to report back to the executive. 
Action: ST to inform the executive of the next trainee webinar organiser. 
ii. Proposal for simulation program on HD emergencies SK.
Discussion about organising an onsite simulation day for HD emergencies. To be organised in conjunction with a SIMS team. May coincide with AGM or with TSANZ meeting. Sally Kellet to organise in conjunction with the trainees. There was general support from the group for the idea. 
Action: Sally Kellet and trainees will organise a simulation day on HD emergencies. It has been suggested this may best be coordinated in conjunction with another meeting. 
c. Nephrotic syndrome consensus protocol for 1st presentation.
JK: Awaiting PREDNOS publication and will then take the protocol forward after consultation
Action: JK will circulate the new protocol after review of the publication to units for consideration
d. Trainee IPNA travel grants 
i. Announcement of successful applications for Paul Roy Travel Grants 
1. Sally Kellet oral presentation: $1500
2. Noa Amir IPTA oral presentation: $1500
e. RACP- New model for collaboration with specialist societies – Nil new.
f. 
ANZPNA application for GH in young children (Attachment 4: PBAC response attached)- JK follow up letter 31/7/17 (attached). 
JK has received a reply in response from PBAC stating they are looking into the issue again.
g. Transition- Strong advocacy from MBS review and RACP statement (“Sick kids grow up”). 
No new updates
5. Membership issues:
a. 
New membership form on website with criteria for all categories. 
b. Nomination of new members TK, NL
i. Trainee members: Ashlene McKay
ii. 
Full members: Siah Kim 
Proposed: Fiona Mackie Seconded: SK
iii. Honorary members: Gad Kainer. Proposed: JK Seconded: Sean K
c. Maintenance of members’ contact list with addresses. TK, NL.
Members need to keep their own contact details up to date
Action: Members to regularly update their contact details for the website with NL if changes
6. 
Chair’s report. JK 

7. 

[bookmark: _MON_1567960903]Honorary Treasurer’s report. DH 
JK: there has been a slight reduction in income because of late subscriptions. Members were reminded that if they are more than 2 years late on payment, their membership will lapse and they will have to re-apply for membership
8. 
[bookmark: _MON_1565449258]ANZPNA Research group report. PT 
PT has invited any interested members to join the group
9. 

[bookmark: _MON_1565449648]International Pediatric Nephrology Association Report. DL 
JC and A LeP spoke about the plans for a shared registry between IPNA and countries of participating members. The primary benefit would be for developing countries who do not have the mechanism for data collection; it is likely to be of less benefit for countries like Australia and New Zealand who have robust data collection. In time there would be the capacity for us to propose research questions to the database. Discussion are ongoing and our interests are represented by JC and A Le P
10. 
The Oceania Group of ANZPNA, acute dialysis for Pacific islands. DL 
FM: discussion about the problems encountered with the resignation of Sir Trevor Garland. JC commented that ANZSN acknowledged there was no overall strategy for delivery of renal care in Oceania. ANZSN may be interested in partnering on the issue. JC requested JK nominate interested and relevant individuals for this. 
Action: JK to inform JC of appropriate member/s to be involved in ANZSN Oceania nephrology project
11. 
Specialist Advisory Committee Report (ATC).
a. 
[bookmark: _MON_1565532702]Australia. AD

 
AD informed us that trainees need to be involved in the acute management of 12 transplant patients. There was a discussion regarding restriction of training numbers QLD had elected to train 25% less trainees (adult program). RACP maintains it is responsible for training standards and supervision but not numbers of trainees. 

b. New Zealand. CP

12. ANZSN reports:
a. 
[bookmark: _MON_1565545621]Council. JK 
b. 
[bookmark: _MON_1565449484]SPEC. PT 
Frank Ierino to be new chair
13. 
TSANZ report. SA 
SA: The TSANZ paediatric transplant group has been invited to be upgraded to the status of an advisory group. There is a plan for a half day workshop on allocation and specific paediatric transplant issues. 
a. RTAC subcommittees
i. 
Allocation. FM FM raised issue of planned allocation change in Victoria where requirement for dialysis time for children to obtain priority is removed. Problems with instituting the change as the NOMS algorithm currently includes dialysis and would have to change nationally. There was debate as to the merits of the proposed change and whether it should be advocated nationally with views expressed for and against. The issue requires further debate by the membership. 
Action: This issue is to be debated at the TSANZ workshop
ii. Histocompatibility. JK
14. 
ANZDATA report. ALP 
a. Identification of units for ANZDATA authorised by membership.
b. Renewal of assent. ALP ALP discussed the issue of re-assent for patients at the time of turning 18 ( for provision of data to ANZDATA) It was generally felt that this should be performed by the adult hospitals on transfer. 
Action: A Le PA statement will be added to the privacy area of the ANZDATA website stating that a privacy form should be re-provisioned to patients by the time they turn 18 as part of the transition process. 
15. Renal genetics report. HM
JK: The PKD Foundation approached JK about the lack of resources on their website for ARPKD and would like input from our group. CQ informed that she has already had some involvement with the group. SA nominated H McC to be involved as well. 
16. Workforce Issues:
a. 
[bookmark: _MON_1565448559]Review (see report by AW). 
b. Members need to ensure they are correctly registered with AHPRA as paed nephrologist (currently sig underestimated when AMW looked at workforce)
17. New business:
a. 
[bookmark: _GoBack]Newly established Darwin paediatric renal service- SC SC updated us on the new unit. Dialysis is not provided yet with the exception of CRRT via the adult ICU. SC and Sean K  were thanked for their work organising the paediatric update day to follow the meeting. 
b. ANZPNA Paed update Darwin
c. Establishing a working group on workforce safety and staffing for paediatic nephrology services in ANZ. NL is trying to develop a document and asked if any resources known of. SA has a document from CHW on staffing and funding to send to NL. SK suggested that ASMOF and AMA guidelines may be of more use in terms of safe rostering. S McT commented that the use of benchmarking to obtain more resources was unlikely to be a successful strategy. 
Action: SA to send document to NL
d. 
[bookmark: _MON_1565448258]Request for endorsement of TMA guideline for Rx in ANZ (see attached draft). 
This discussion was held with JK excused from the room. The authors of this document are seeking endorsement from our group for publication. There was discussion that ANZSN had already declined to endorse the document as it had not gone through the usual processes for development of a consensus guideline ie CARI. Members agreed with this and there was also general discomfort with endorsing a document that ANZSN had declined to endorse. It has not been the policy of ANZPNA to date to endorse consensus documents unless we have been involved in the process from the beginning. It was felt that the document carried weight based on the authors involved and that endorsement would in no way affect publication.
Action: The group declined to endorse the guideline.
e. Proposal of new agenda item; benchmarking unit practices. Plan to develop one on transplant immunosuppression regimens and Monitoring of DSAs in time for paed workshop in Melbourne in 2018.
f. 
Academy of Child and Adolescent Health (ACAH) approach for collaboration. 
Noted. 
18. New exec to be nominated for 2018.
ANZPNA_application.pdf


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Title: _________________________ 


Surname: __________________ Given Name: _________________ 
Date of birth: _____________  Male/Female: ________________ 
Address for correspondence:
 _____________________________________________________ 
 _____________________________________________________ 
Telephone (daytime):   ___________________________ 
Telephone: (after hours – optional):   ___________________________ 
Mobile: ______________________ 
Facsimile: ____________________ 
E-mail address: _____________________________________________ 
Medical Registration: State  ……………… Date: …./…/……  
    Registration Number: ____________________ 
Nominated by:     Seconded by: 


__________________________ ____________________________ 
Signature:…………………………… ……………………………………………… 


Applicants qualifications: 
 
 Qualification Conferring Institute Month & Year 


conferred 
Undergraduate 
Education 


   


Postgraduate 
education 


   


Higher 
qualifications 


   


Postgraduate experience in nephrology 


Appointment Institute Commencement date 
   
   


Current appointments: 


Appointment Institute Commencement date 
   
   


Membership of Professional Societies: 
…………………………………………………………………………………………………
………………………………………………………………………………………………… 
If elected, I agree to abide by the Articles of Association and to pay my Annual 
Subscription so long as I shall remain a member 


Signature: __________________________________ Date: ________________ 
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An Associate Member of ANZPNA is a trainee in pediatric nephrology who will receive notices and circulars but will be ineligible to 
vote and will not be levied fees. 
An Honorary Member of ANZPNA is a medical practitioner who has made a substantial contribution to paediatric nephrology ins 
Australia & New Zealand and whose application has been approved by the Annual General Meeting of the ANZPNA.  They will 
receive notices & circulars, be eligible to vote, but not levied fees. 
A Full Member of ANZPNA is a medical practitioner who has a substantial involvement in paediatric nephrology, be eligible for 
nomination to be admitted to membership of the ANZPNA.  They will receive notices, circulars and be eligible to vote, and will be 
levied fees. 
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22/08/2017 


Chair’s Report, annual general meeting, 2017 


 


The last year has been another productive one for ANZPNA, with the society maintaining a high level 


of engagement in policy, clinical service delivery, workforce training and trainee education. The 


latter in particular has been a very rewarding aspect and has been largely a result of the tremendous 


energy and efforts of our website manager, Nick Larkins and associate member, Sharon Teoh. The 


success of the webinar program and the plans to be discussed with membership regarding 


establishment of a formal training program for all our trainees, scattered around the world, 


integrated through the ANZPNA website, is an exciting investment in the future of our society. To 


acknowledge this, it will be worth considering a formal role for a trainee representative to liaise with 


our executive in ensuring the ongoing viability of this important work. 


I am feeling extremely positive about the state of the society and the shared goodwill of the 


membership. I think ANZPNA is fulfilling its role as the key representative society for our specialty, 


with high levels of representation in the spheres of clinical service delivery, research, training and 


public profiling. For a small group, we are challenged by meeting the needs of all these areas of 


influence and it is only possible with the generous contributions by all members across the society, 


incorporating work with numerous collaborators and societies, including ANZSN, ANZDATA, IPNA, 


SPEC, SAC, RACP, NRTS, RTAC, TSANZ, OTA. Nonetheless, I would like to continue to request you all 


retain an open mind to putting your hands up to contribute where possible. I would like to 


acknowledge and thank my fellow members of the Executive, Fiona Mackie, Deirdre Hahn and Tonya 


Kara, who have been an enormous support. In particular, we will miss Tonya’s presence at this year’s 


AGM and we are all wishing her a speedy and complete recovery. I am grateful for Nick Larkins in 


agreeing to assist in undertaking the secretary duties for ANZPNA while Tonya recovers. 


This year our AGM is occurring as part of the ANZSN ASM and I am optimistic having this predictable 


timing for the AGM will benefit attendance this year and in years going forward.  


 


Dr. Joshua Kausman, MBBS FRACP PhD 


Chair, ANZPNA, 


Department of Nephrology 


The Royal Children's Hospital Melbourne  


50 Flemington Road   |   Parkville   |   3052   |  VIC  
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ANZPNA TREASURER’S REPORT 2016 - 2017

The Associations financial position is lower than 2016, with a current surplus of 772 AUD ( 2016 - 3195 AUD) recorded at the end of the financial year.

The income reflects membership fees received during the financial year, with some members having outstanding fees for the current and previous financial years. 

Income from subscriptions was 5780 AUD

Expenditure was higher than previous years: 

Financial auditor services: 770 AUD (2016 - 550 AUD) 

Website: 320 AUD (2016- 161 AUD)

Travel grants: 1250 AUD

General: 227 AUD

IPNA subscriptions: 2646 AUD 

Bank charges: 65

Mr Barry Hodson has produced the auditor’s report and this and the financial statement are prepared for approval at this 2017AGM.

With approval of these statements we expect to comply with the regulatory requirements set by ASIC in a timely manner.

Current IPNA/ANZPNA subscriptions are sent out in $US with the AUD exchange rate at the time and an additional 5% buffer for bank fees.

It will continue to remain the discretion of the members to decide whether to pay their ANZPNA subscription as part of their IPNA membership or separately at the present rate of 100AUD.

At the time of writing 29 subscriptions were received, including 6 trainees taking up combined IPNA/ ANZPNA membership.



Deirdre Hahn

Honorary Treasurer

ANZPNA 

31 August 2017
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[image: ][image: ]The Directors present their report on the Society for the year ended 30th.June 
2017. 



The Directors in office during this period were as follows: 



Dr Joshua Yehuda Kausman - Chair

Dr. - Tonya Kara - Secretary

[bookmark: _GoBack]Dr. Deirdre Hahn - Honorary Treasurer

Dr. Fiona Elizabeth Mackie 

The principal activity of the Association during the financial year was to foster and
develop the study of paediatric nephrology in Australia and New Zealand. No
significant change in the nature of these activities occurred during the year.



 
The surplus of the company for the year was $772 (2016 surplus $3,258)



No dividends were paid or declared since the start of the financial year. No options
over issued shares or interests in the company were granted during or since the end of
the financial year and there were no outstanding options at the date of this report.



No indemnities have been given or insurance premiums paid, during or since the end
of the financial year, for any person who is or has been an officer or auditor of the
company.



The Association's operations are not regulated by any significant environmental
regulation under a law of the Commonwealth or of a State or Territory. At this time
the Directors are not aware of any other developments likely to have a significant 
effect on the Association's operations.



The Auditor's Independence Declaration is set out on page 3 and forms Part of the
Directors' Report for the year ended 30th.June 2017. 

This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the Directors.





Dr. Deirdre Hahn - Honorary Treasurer

Date

AUSTRALIAN & NEW ZEALAND

PAEDIATRIC NEPHROLOGY ASSOCIATION

ABN 85 087 155 780

 DIRECTORS REPORT



[image: ][image: ]The Directors have determined that the company. is not a reporting entity and that this
special purpose report should be prepared in accordance with the accounting
policies outlines in Note I to the financial statements.



The Directors of the company declare that:



I. The financial statements and notes, presents fairly the company's financial
position as at 30th.June 2017 and its performance for the year ended on that date in accordance with the accounting policies outlines in Note 1 to the

financial statements.



2. In the Directors opinion there are reasonable grounds to believe that the
company will be able to pay its debts as and when they become due and
payable.



This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the Directors.









Dr. Deirdre Hahn - Honorary Treasurer

Date



AUSTRALIAN & NEW ZEALAND

PAEDIATRIC NEPHROLOGY ASSOCIATION

ABN 85 087 155 780

DIRECTORS DECLARATION

· ,, .,

~ .^





BARRY HODSON FCPA

Certified Practising Accountant

Liability limited by a scheme approved under

Professional Standards Leglislation

PO Box 139 Kuranda Qld 4881

Tel: 07 4093 9770 	0418 314532

Fax: 07 4093 9770

bhodsonfcpa@internode.on.net

[image: ]Auditors Independence Declaration to the Directors of 

Australian and New Zealand Paediatric Nephrology Association



In relation to my audit of the financial report of the Australian & New Zealand Paediatric
Nephrology Association for the year ended 30th.June 2017, to the best of my
knowledge and belief, there have been no contraventions of the auditor independence
requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 or any applicable code of professional
conduct.
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Barry Hodson FCPA



27th. July 2017







SCOPE



I have audited the financial report: of AUSTRALIAN & NEW ZEALAND PAEDIATRIC
NEPHROLOGY ASSOCIATION for the year ended 30th.June 2017. 

The elected committee of the Association is responsible for the presentation of the financial report and the information contained therein, and has determined that the cash basis of accounting used is appropriate
for the needs of the members. I have conducted an independent audit of the financial report in order to express an opinion to the members of the Association on its preparation and presentation. No opinion is expressed as to whether the basis of accounting used is appropriate to the needs of the members.



My audit has been conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards to provide reasonable assurance as to whether the financial report is free of material misstatement. My procedures included examination on a test basis, of evidence supporting the amounts and other accounting estimates. These procedures have been undertaken to form an opinion as to whether, in all material respects, the financial report is presented fairly in accordance with the cash basis of accounting so as to present a view which Is consistent with my understanding of the financial position of the Association and the results of its operations. Statements of Accounting Concepts and position of the Association and the results of its operations, 
Statements of Accounting Concepts and Accounting Standards are not applicable to the cash basis of accounting adopted by the Association.



The audit opinion expressed in this report has been formed on the above basis.



QUALIFICATION



As is common for organisations of this type, it is not practicable for the Association to maintain
an effective system of internal control over registrations subscriptions and other fund raising
activities until their initial entry in the accounting records. Accordingly, my audit in relation to
income was limited to amounts recorded.



QUALIFIED AUDIT OPINION

In my opinion, subject to the effects of such adjustments, if any, that might have been determined to be necessary had the limitation referred to in the qualification paragraph not existed, the financial report presents fairly the statement of financial position and cash flows as at the date in accordance with the cash basis of accounting as described above and notes to the accounts





[image: Description: Description: BHodson signature]



Barry Hodson FCPA					date 27th.July 2017

Audit Reg No 1936



AUSTRALIAN & NEW ZEALAND

PAEDIATRIC NEPHROLOGY ASSOCIATION

ABN 85 087 155 780



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT



















In our opinion, subject to the effects of such adjustments, if any, that might have been
determined to be necessary had the limitation referred to in the qualification paragraph not
existed, the financial report presents fairly me statement of finanCiai position and cash flows
as at the date in accordance with the cash basis of accounting as described above and notes
to the accounts.



-.







AUSTRALIAN & NEW ZEALAND

PAEDIATRIC NEPHROLOGY ASSOCIATION

ABN 85 087 155 780



STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH.JUNE 2017



		

		2017

		2016



		Income

		

		



		Interest received

		270

		319



		Member Subscriptions

		5,780

		6,621



		Total Income

		6,050

		6,940



		

		

		



		Expenses

		

		



		Audit Fees

		770

		550



		Bank Charges

		65

		22



		General

		227

		207



		Subscriptions

		2,646

		2,742



		Website fees

		320

		161



		Travel grants

		1,250

		0



		Total Expenses

		5,278

		3,682



		

		

		



		Net Profit for year

		772

		3,258



		

		

		









STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH.JUNE 2017

		CASH FLOWS FROM  OPERATING ACTIVITIES

		2017

		2016



		As per statement of financial performance

		772

		3,258



		Increase in cash held

		772

		3,258



		Cash at beginning of financial year

		26,311

		23,053



		Cash at end of financial year

		27,083

		26,311







STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AT 30TH.JUNE 2017



		Assets

		2017

		2016



		Current Assets

		

		



		Commonwealth Bank

		15,517

		15,014



		CBA Term Deposit

		11,566

		11,297



		Total Current Assets

		27,083

		26,311



		Total Assets

		27,083

		26,311



		Net Assets

		27,083

		26,311



		Equity

		

		



		Retained Earnings

		26,311

		23,053



		Current Year Earnings

		772

		3,258



		Total Equity

		27,083

		26,311







The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements


AUSTRALIAN & NEW ZEALAND

PAEDIATRIC NEPHROLOGY ASSOCIATION

ABN 85 087 155 780



NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH.JUNE 2017



Note 1



STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES



These financial statements are special purpose financial accounts of Australian & New

Zealand Paediatric Nephrology Association. a company limited by guarantee. The accounts
have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Associations Incorporation

Act (Queensland) specifically for use by the members of the Association. The accounts are
based on historical cost and do not take into account the changing value of money. The cash
basis of accounting has been applied.



No regard has been paid to the application of Accounting Standards or other mandatory
professional reporting requirements (Urgent Issues Group Consensus Views) issued by
Australian professional accounting bodies except where specifically stated.



NOTES TO ACCOUNTS

Income Tax

It is believed the association is exempt from income tax.
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ANZPNA Subcommittee for Collaborative Research

2017 Annual Report

Active collaborative research continues strongly within the Australia and New Zealand Paediatric Nephrology Association with the involvement of multiple sites in several ongoing projects.

The aDOPT (a Dose Optimisation Prior to Transplant) prospective trial (PI - David Metz) has recruited 42 of 54 planned patients to date. Paediatric centres (Royal Children’s and Monash Children’s Hospitals, Sydney Children’s Hospital, and Lady Cilento Children’s Hospital) have enrolled 16 (38%) of these patients. At this stage, the recruitment of the remaining 12 patients will continue into early/mid next year with current funding until February 2018 (extension for funding submitted).


Anna Francis has been coordinating several multicentre projects as part of her PhD studies. The review of the treatment and outcomes of recurrent FSGS post kidney transplant (four centres involved - LCCH, Starship Hospital, Sydney Children’s and Westmead Hospitals) has been completed and submitted for publication to Pediatric Transplantation. The studies on the impact of CKD on quality of life in children and adolescents are ongoing with the involvement of LCCH, Starship Hospital, Sydney Children’s Hospital, Westmead Hospital and RCH investigators. Anna is presenting some of the results of this prospective cross-sectional study as oral presentation at ANZSN AGM 2017 and the poster presentation at ASN 2017.

Previously planned prospective study of the impact of growth hormone therapy on growth in children with bone age < 2.5 years and CKD (LCCH and Westmead) has not progressed after OzGrow stopped reporting data on children receiving growth hormone. Retrospective part of this study is ongoing (LCCH).

KidGen collaborative consortium has been actively recruiting patients with inherited kidney disease and so far unidentified genetic mutation into genomic studies in all Australian states (PI – Andrew Mallett). Some of the results of this collaboration have been presented at the annual Renal Genetic Symposium in Melbourne over the last 2 years.

Another exciting project that has received funding recently is the INCEPTION (Improve immuNologiCal assessment to improve PaediaTric kidney transplantION outcomes) trial (PI – Wai Lim). This study, planned to commence early next year, will investigate the immunological compatibility between maternal/paternal donors and their recipients at the epitope level and its impact on the outcomes of paediatric kidney transplantation. The majority of paediatric nephrology centres in Australia and New Zealand will be participating in this project.

The subcommittee members are happy to discuss any research ideas for collaborative research projects and help to coordinate the potential studies.

Peter, Tonya, Josh and Sean

ANZPNA Subcommittee for Collaborative Research
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IPNA REPORT 

COUNCIL MEETING – APRIL 2017



The treasurer’s report from 2016 indicated revenue of $US893,000 with expenditure of $US867,000.  Currently investment assets total $US2.9million.

A fundraiser, Henry Brehn, has been appointed from the 1st May 2017 at a cost of $US9,000/month for 3 months, then $US6,000/month for 21 months.

The membership review by Europa (IPNA management organiser) identified 1332 current members with 3% of the total from Oceania.  

The media group of IPNA (supported by Amelia Le Page) was complimented on their weekly Facebook posting, quarterly newsletters and Saving Young Lives social media posting.  There are plans for a handbook for Fellows on the website and the archiving and collection of historical data.  The education committee are trialling IPNA academy webinars.

The Iguaçu meeting attracted 1,163 delegates and sustained a financial loss of €6,754.  Venice was chosen as the next conference venue after presentation from Venice, Calgary and Dublin.  Dates are to be announced as there is a clash with the major Jewish holidays.  Istanbul has been deferred until possibly 2022 depending on the political situation.

Editorial appointment for the Paediatric Nephrology Journal is for 4 years initially with an option of two 4 year terms.  Incoming editors will need to be interviewed and provide a statement of how to improve the journal.  A new round of negotiation with the journal publisher (Springer) is due to commence to try to maximise the revenue received for IPNA.  The textbook publisher contract will also be renegotiated with 3 new editors joining the textbook editorial board (Carl Bates, Rukshana Schroff and Arvind Bagga).

A request for assistance to IPNA members from countries in crisis such as the civil war in Venezuela was supported.

The Saving Young Lives programme to provide acute PD for AKI in Africa was supported with an agreement to match the $25,000 per year provided by the ISN and ISPD.  The cessation of the support from the American Philanthropists has necessitated the use of Ringer lactate + 50% dextrose as a homemade PD solution (Paed. Dial. Int. 2014, July-August).  The database records 65% patient survival and the average duration of dialysis is 11 days.  The AKI is more commonly due to gastroenteritis or malaria in Africa.

The ongoing Fellowship support for training nephrologists in third world countries continues.  There is a plan to develop an IPNA research Fellowship to provide educational training in research for the registry so that data collection can be commenced in developing countries.  The Sister Centre template for those institutions supporting isolated practitioners is on the website and the applications will occur at the same time as those for the Fellowship programme.

There was progress in the planning of the IPNA registry with a registry constitution and committee established.  A data collection form has been developed for countries which do not have access to a registry and the importance of informed consent and patient information have been included.  The plan is a data sharing agreement initially looking at primary renal disease, treatment modality, cause of death and graft failure.  The affiliated registry will be asked to ensure no duplication of information and data storage and intellectual property remain with the related registry.  An annual report is planned and the registry will be on the IPNA website.  The next stage is finalising the list of registries, sending out invitations for the date collection to national and international registries.  A date needs to be set for signing the sharing agreements but a deadline of August 2017 has been proposed.  It is hoped a preliminary registry report will be presented at the IPNA general council meeting in Kuala Lumpur.  ANZPNA’s representative on the registry committee is Jonathan Craig with assistance from Amelia Le Page.  

The IPNA Management Renewal and Professional Congress Organiser (PCO) will be renegotiated.  Europa term finishes on April 30, 2018 and fees to date have exceeded €250,000 for 18 months.  In the future the local Congress organisers will provide local PCO’s (included in their bid) but the IPNA management bid will again be competitive and suggestions are very welcome.

IPNA endorsement of the HUS Registry chaired by Christopher Licht was discussed.  HUS International was previously the European Research Guidelines but the terminology was updated since it is now hoping to provide an international advisory role.  This endorsement was agreed and the provision of a workshop at Congress meetings was discussed.  It was stipulated that there was no formal connection to Alexion on their registry.  This is a collaborative agreement and it was very clear no funding was to be supplied.

[bookmark: _GoBack]A request for a jobs board similar to that on ASPN website was requested so that trainees worldwide could access positions.  The plan was to provide links to the regional societies who would advertise and allow the job board to be linked to the IPNA website (Josh has already discussed this with Nick).

The next executive committee meeting is on the 2nd October in Kuala Lumpur.  
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The treasurer’s report from 2016 indicated revenue of $US893,000 with expenditure of $US867,000.  Currently investment assets total $US2.9million.

A fundraiser, Henry Brehn, has been appointed from the 1st May 2017 at a cost of $US9,000/month for 3 months, then $US6,000/month for 21 months.

The membership review by Europa (IPNA management organiser) identified 1332 current members with 3% of the total from Oceania.  

The media group of IPNA (supported by Amelia Le Page) was complimented on their weekly Facebook posting, quarterly newsletters and Saving Young Lives social media posting.  There are plans for a handbook for Fellows on the website and the archiving and collection of historical data.  The education committee are trialling IPNA academy webinars.

The Iguaçu meeting attracted 1,163 delegates and sustained a financial loss of €6,754.  Venice was chosen as the next conference venue after presentation from Venice, Calgary and Dublin.  Dates are to be announced as there is a clash with the major Jewish holidays.  Istanbul has been deferred until possibly 2022 depending on the political situation.

Editorial appointment for the Paediatric Nephrology Journal is for 4 years initially with an option of two 4 year terms.  Incoming editors will need to be interviewed and provide a statement of how to improve the journal.  A new round of negotiation with the journal publisher (Springer) is due to commence to try to maximise the revenue received for IPNA.  The textbook publisher contract will also be renegotiated with 3 new editors joining the textbook editorial board (Carl Bates, Rukshana Schroff and Arvind Bagga).

A request for assistance to IPNA members from countries in crisis such as the civil war in Venezuela was supported.

The Saving Young Lives programme to provide acute PD for AKI in Africa was supported with an agreement to match the $25,000 per year provided by the ISN and ISPD.  The cessation of the support from the American Philanthropists has necessitated the use of Ringer lactate + 50% dextrose as a homemade PD solution (Paed. Dial. Int. 2014, July-August).  The database records 65% patient survival and the average duration of dialysis is 11 days.  The AKI is more commonly due to gastroenteritis or malaria in Africa.

The ongoing Fellowship support for training nephrologists in third world countries continues.  There is a plan to develop an IPNA research Fellowship to provide educational training in research for the registry so that data collection can be commenced in developing countries.  The Sister Centre template for those institutions supporting isolated practitioners is on the website and the applications will occur at the same time as those for the Fellowship programme.

There was progress in the planning of the IPNA registry with a registry constitution and committee established.  A data collection form has been developed for countries which do not have access to a registry and the importance of informed consent and patient information have been included.  The plan is a data sharing agreement initially looking at primary renal disease, treatment modality, cause of death and graft failure.  The affiliated registry will be asked to ensure no duplication of information and data storage and intellectual property remain with the related registry.  An annual report is planned and the registry will be on the IPNA website.  The next stage is finalising the list of registries, sending out invitations for the date collection to national and international registries.  A date needs to be set for signing the sharing agreements but a deadline of August 2017 has been proposed.  It is hoped a preliminary registry report will be presented at the IPNA general council meeting in Kuala Lumpur.  ANZPNA’s representative on the registry committee is Jonathan Craig with assistance from Amelia Le Page.  

The IPNA Management Renewal and Professional Congress Organiser (PCO) will be renegotiated.  Europa term finishes on April 30, 2018 and fees to date have exceeded €250,000 for 18 months.  In the future the local Congress organisers will provide local PCO’s (included in their bid) but the IPNA management bid will again be competitive and suggestions are very welcome.

IPNA endorsement of the HUS Registry chaired by Christopher Licht was discussed.  HUS International was previously the European Research Guidelines but the terminology was updated since it is now hoping to provide an international advisory role.  This endorsement was agreed and the provision of a workshop at Congress meetings was discussed.  It was stipulated that there was no formal connection to Alexion on their registry.  This is a collaborative agreement and it was very clear no funding was to be supplied.

[bookmark: _GoBack]A request for a jobs board similar to that on ASPN website was requested so that trainees worldwide could access positions.  The plan was to provide links to the regional societies who would advertise and allow the job board to be linked to the IPNA website (Josh has already discussed this with Nick).

The next executive committee meeting is on the 2nd October in Kuala Lumpur.  
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OCEANIA COMMITTEE REPORT

ANZPNA



The project for provision of acute PD in AKI in the Pacific Islands is still underway.  A training programme (USB) and booklet have been developed and a poster was presented at ISPD outlining our objectives.

Discussions have occurred with the Minister for Health for the Solomon Islands and the nephrologist in Fiji who are very supportive of the provision of acute dialysis for children in their region.  The project has been discussed at the general council meeting of IPNA and received positive feedback.

Sir Trevor Garland has resigned from Fresenius but will remain involved, as Consul-General of the Solomon Islands.  Fiona, Jill and I have asked to meet with the Vice President, Fresenious Medical Care.  We are requesting confirmation of financial support and distribution of acute PD catheters, fluids and dialysis ancillaries and the assembly of dialysis kits.  

Once the logistics have been approved we need to obtain permission for importation of medical supplies to Fiji, Samoa and the Solomon Islands which are the initial pilot locations.

The 3rd Annual South Pacific Nephrology Forum in Suva will be attended by William Wong as an invited speaker and it is hoped that he will be able to launch the project at that time.

In July, Sydney Children’s Hospital had a large volume of PD fluid delivered to a family whose child received a renal transplant shortly thereafter.  Arrangements were made to try to transport the fluid to Fiji via William’s contacts.
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Advanced Training Committee Report 2017

The major change in training requirements this year is the change to the College projects.  Trainees are now required to do one major and one other project.  The list of types of projects can be found in the College handbook but the major project is generally:

· Research in human subjects, populations and communities or laboratory research

· Systematic review 

· Audit

[bookmark: _GoBack] It is strongly advised that trainees submit their major project in their penultimate year so that any amendments do not hold up the award of FRACP.  Trainees should also be aware that the College is introducing plagiarism software for all projects. 

The two postgraduate courses have been removed from projects but are still mandated for nephrology training.  Paediatric trainees can switch either the ANZSN or TSANZ course for a paediatric course but it must be prospectively approved by the ATC.

The requirement for acute transplant experience has again been debated and the ATC has recommended that it be retained.  Trainees are expected to participate in the acute management of at least 12 transplant recipients.  For some trainees this has been difficult and trainees should be encouraged to seek alternative arrangements (eg linking in with adult units), if their predicted numbers are low. Prospective approval will be required for any alternative arrangements.

The College is looking into supervisor training.  Currently supervisors are encouraged to attend regular courses but this is not mandated.  Work is underway to improve training uptake and this may include mandated courses.

Trainees and supervisors should be aware of the maximum allowed time in each centre, as trainees have previously extended time in one centre, only to have some time unaccredited.  Trainees should also be aware that training in Toronto, Vancouver and Great Ormond St Hospital is already approved (until about 2020).  Training in other overseas centres would need prospective approval. Trainees are strongly encouraged to spend a maximum of 24 months in any one state for nephrology training.

Finally, trainees are encouraged to fill in the questionnaire at the end of their final supervisors report, regarding their experience in the post.  This information will supplement the site surveys in the decision process of site accreditation.
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ANZSN Council report for ANZPNA 2017 AGM



With the inclusion of ANZPNA formally into the ANZSN structure in 2016, a permanent ex-officio seat on the ANZSN council is now provided to ANZPNA. This will be occupied by the chair of ANZPNA or a delegate as nominated by the chair. This allows the paediatric representation to be secured within ANZSN, including voting rights and attendance at all ANZSN council meetings. Accordingly, ANZSN council reports will be provided by the chair of ANZPNA.



A focus of ANZSN planning has been on the streamlining of the structure and function of ANZSN, especially the subcommittee structure into the four current entities (RAC, DAC, CPAC and SPEC) and better direct resources towards policy, research and education. A significant restructuring of the subcommittees with appropriate governance arrangements has taken place in line with the newly established mission and vision of the Society. This work was driven by Paolo Ferrari as president of ANZSN and the society is indebted to his stewardship of these changes, including the vision of consolidating the bond between ANZSN and ANZPNA. Unfortunately, he was unable to complete his full term, but we are fortunate that Jonathan Craig has now assumed the role of President for the remainder of the term. New strategic foci include work on environmental responsibility, gender equity and financial sustainability.



ANZPNA, now more than ever, has a strong voice in advocating for the needs of children. This representation is evident on ANZSN council and a number of the sub-committees, but expressions of interest for new positions and working groups provide further opportunities for paediatric representation and ANZPNA members should endeavor to contribute as broadly as possible.



Joshua Kausman

ANZPNA Chair and ex-officio member ANZSN council

29 August 2017
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ANZSN SPEC Report 2017

The Scientific Program and Education Committee (SPEC) is one of the most active subcommittees of the ANZSN. SPEC continues to foster and promote dissemination of high quality scientific knowledge and education in nephrology in the field of basic science and clinical medicine. 


Angela Webster will finish her term on SPEC at the end of this year and Frank Ierino will replace her as the newly elected chair of SPEC. There have been two recent changes involving SPEC membership and SPEC meetings: new members’ term of appointment has changed from 6 to 3 years, and due to the restrictive budget of the ANZSN, face-to-face meetings (twice a year) have been changed to teleconference meetings (four times per year). SPEC is also working on the development of a new mid-career award to alternate with the TJ Neale award (focused on science/research) to consider service to nephrology on a broader basis (clinical service/education).

SPEC’s main objective remains the design of the scientific program for the ASM and the organization of the update course in nephrology. This year’s scientific program is of high quality with the record number (339) abstracts being presented in Darwin. We have been successful in organizing a paediatric nephrology update course (Swasti and Sean) at this year’s ASM. Planning for ASM 2018 (held in Sydney) has commenced and SPEC is currently approaching potential international speakers. The theme of ASM 2018 will be New Era in Nephrology – the clinician and cutting edge technology, emerging therapies and personalized medicine. Two international speakers have so far accepted the invitation: David Kavanaugh (Newcastle, UK) – complement and aHUS, and Barbara Murphy (Mount Sinai, US) – genomics and kidney. SPEC will also commence planning for WCN 2019 (Melbourne) and will negotiate with ISN on the contribution of ANZSN/SPEC to planning of the scientific program.

Current main educational activities of SPEC include: the development of eLearning hub (Rob McGinley), a comprehensive education platform for advanced trainees (tailored to the needs of the trainees summarised in 2015 survey), with possible launch in 2018. There will be a paediatric component on this platform and we are working on the details of our involvement (Nick Larkins and Sharon Teo); basic course in nephrology (Unravelling the Secrets of Kidneys) which was held in Sydney in July 2017. The course had an excellent attendance, positive feedback and there is a plan for this course to become an annual event (Rob McGinley). SPEC is also liaising with TSANZ SPEC about their support of the ANZSN update course (Transplant Masterclass) – access to TSANZ lecturers and speakers (Muh Geot Wong and Frank Ierino).

Peter Trnka


ANZPNA representative on SPEC
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TSANZ report 2018

· Paediatrics well represented with good numbers and presentations at last two AGMs. Trainees also attending and enjoying the PGC. 



· Paediatric group is being upgraded to an advisory group which allows it to participate in the TLRG meetings of the organ and tissue authority (OTA).



· Josh is currently chair of the paediatric subcommittee and has done a great job of increasing involvement.





· There is OTA funding for review of paediatric donors which Josh is heading to look at the capacity and guidelines for this group of donors.



· The IPTA meeting in Barcelona was very well supported by Australians and New Zealanders with over 20 doctors, nurses and allied health from most centres attending and many excellent presentations from across ANZ. 





· The next IPTA meeting is in Vancouver 2019 and promises to be very good. 



· The upcoming TSANZ meeting in Melbourne in 2018 promises to be excellent with Sandy Fang the paediatric liver surgeon who has led the studies withdrawing IS from these patients a highlight. Also Kathryn Tinckham from Canada and Stan Jordan UCLA both experts on ABMR. Details below.



· Fiona current paediatric representative on RTAC involved in upgrading the existing organ allocation model.





Steve Alexander





TSANZ ASM 2018

The 2018 TSANZ Annual Scientific Meeting will be held at the Melbourne Convention Centre, Victoria, from 28th April - 1st May, 2018.

Convenors for this year's ASM will be Dr Rosemary Masterson and Dr Lucy Sullivan with assistance by the TSANZ Scientific Program and Education Committee (SPEC)

The Annual Dinner will be held at Showtime Events Centre, South Wharf Promenade, Melbourne on Monday 30th April, 2018 commencing at 7.00pm.

Abstract Submission & Registration information coming soon!



Key Speakers

Dr Sandy Feng
Professor of Surgery in Residence
Director, Abdominal Transplant Surgery Fellowship
University of California San Francisco
San Francisco, USA

 

Dr Stanley Jordan
Director, Nephrology & Transplant Immunology and Medical Director, Kidney Transplant Program Ashley Vo, PharmD, FAST - Director, Transplant Immunotherapy Program CEDARS-SINAI Medical Center Comprehensive Transplant Center
Los Angeles, USA

 

Professor Vijay K Kuchroo
Samuel L Wasserstrom Professor of Neurology, Harvard Medical School
Associate Member, Broad Institute
Director,Evergrande Center for Immunologic Diseases
Harvard Medical School and Brigham and Women's Hospital
Boston, USA

 

A/Professor Kathryn Tinckam
Medical Director HLA Laboratory and Transplant Nephrologist, University Health Network
Associate Professor of Medicine and Laboratory Medicine, University of Toronto 
Toronto, Canada 
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Allocation Subcommittee- RTAC- Fiona Mackie Report to ANZPNA 2017 AGM

ANZPNA does not have full membership of this committee. Our status is ‘standing invited guest’.



1. Introduction of KDPI (Kidney Donor Profile Index) 

[bookmark: _GoBack]A survival index estimating donor kidney survival (Kidney Donor Profile Index: KDPI) was incorporated into the National Organ Matching (NOMS) system in November 2016. Donor kidneys are now allocated with this score. This is a significant advance and will move us towards improved allocation practices in the next 1-2 years as we analyse and use this data. Information on KDPI is available on the TSANZ website (guideline and document download area). The calculation of a survival index for recipients (the EPTS: Expected Post Transplant Survival) was also recently introduced in NOMS (this is only for adults). This data will start to be collected and analysed. Please note that EPTS is not being used to direct allocation and does not appear on allocation lists at this stage

2. Replacement of NOMS with OrganMatch

NOMS is in the process of being replaced by a new software system (Datacom) at significant cost. Work has already commenced and data is currently being cleansed and migrated . It will have additional functionality including organ matching simulation environment, clinican report generation, and mobile software for phones and tablets

3. Australian Paired Kidney Exchange Programme

National director Paolo Ferrari has left his role to return to Switzerland. A/Professor Peter Hughes from Royal Melbourne Hospital has been appointed in the new role. It will continue to run 4 matches a year. Inclusion of NZ is planned- I am not aware of the current status of this. 

4. Donation after cardiac death: discussions about WIT and maximum accepted time. Current definition of WIT= time from fall SBP <50 to cold perfusion. Maximum accepted time 60 minutes. No change proposed. 



Further plans with the committee: allocation reform, approaches to donors with risk of disease transmission. 

Discussions with Victoria and removal of 12 month wait time to achieve paediatric bonus- will discuss further at AGM. 
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Paediatric ANZDATA working group chair report to ANZSN 
August 2017 
 
 


Current working group members: 8 –Sean Kennedy, Mandy Walker, Amelia Le Page, Peter Trnka, 


Anne Durkan, Tonya Kara, Hugh McCarthy, Jean Koh (trainee member) 


Publication activity: 5 publications past 12 months (Aug 16-Aug 17) 


Current projects in progress: 8 


Background ANZDATA news to report:   


 ANZDATA review will take place later this year (commissioned by ANZSN and funding bodies 


including KHA). Timing and TOR to be finalised.  


 ANZDATA (Australia) will submit a complete ethics review of itself for the first time as a 


registry collecting, storing, analysing data and generating research projects. This will inform 


privacy aspects, and whether future Australian research projects will need additional ethics 


review (if so, this would be expected to be as low risk projects). Expected review timeframe 


Sept-Nov. As part of this, the paediatric working group was recently asked to review 


pictorials about ANZDATA that had been designed in NZ as an age appropriate privacy 


information sheets (provided pre-assent) and whether these could be used in Australia.  The 


paediatric working group feedback was favourable and these pictorials will be submitted as 


part of the ethics review.  


 IPNA registry request to ANZDATA. The IPNA registry formally requested AZNDATA enter 


into a data sharing agreement in July 17. Individual (potentially re-identifiable data) was 


requested annually. The steering committee and paediatric working group had concerns 


about workload, privacy, relative benefit for ANZDATA contributors of such an arrangement. 


This request therefore has not been agreed to by the paediatric working group. The option 


of provision of group level data for focused requests is now being evaluated by the steering 


committee. Provision of this level of data from Australia has the support of the working 


group (with proviso that each request is reviewed by our working group and the 


arrangement will be re-reviewed in 12mo).     


 Current early planning phase of a broad review of specific collected data.  


Past agenda items for follow-up  


 The paediatric form had been poorly completed pre-2015. 2016 data completeness has 


significantly improved.  


 Identification of paediatric units in ANZDATA reporting: This will be presented for 2016 data.  


 New agenda items for discussion 


 The issue of renewal of ‘assent’ for minors who are now at the age of maturity has been 


discussed by the working group who are generally in favour of this. (In fact this was an agenda 


item in 2016). The ideal timing of re-assent was debated.—I would like to propose that 


ANZPNA further discuss, develop a position statement +/- formally vote on this.  


 


 


 


 







Paediatric ANZDATA working group chair report to ANZSN 
August 2017 
 


Projects in Progress: 


ATTAINMENT OF HEMOGLOBIN, 
CALCIUM AND PHOSPHATE 
TARGETS, MORTALITY AND TIME 
TO TRANSPLANT IN CHILDREN, 
ADOLESCENTS AND YOUNG 
ADULTS IN AUSTRALIA 
 


A Le Page, D Sivanthanan, K 
Polkinghorne, L Johnstone 


Abstract (poster) accepted for 
ANZSN 
Transplant wait-listing data has 
been provided: draft 
manuscript pending.  


REJECTION, GRAFT AND PATIENT 
OUTCOMES IN PEDIATRIC AND 
ADOLESCENT KIDNEY 
TRANSPLANT RECIPIENTS 


A Le Page, Germaine Wong, 
Sean Kennedy, Nicholas 
Larkins, Wai H Lim 


Presented at IPTA.  
Rejected CJANS, To be 
resubmitted Pediatric 
Nephrology 8/17.  


HLA EPLET MISMATCHES AND 
PAEDIATRIC RENAL 
TRANSPLANTATION 


Sypek M, Hiho S, Cantwell L, 
Hughes P, Le Page A, Kausman 
JY 
 


Oral presentations at TSANZ 
2017, ATC 2017.  
Manuscript write-up in 
progress 


GRAFT FAILURE IN CHILDHOOD 
RECIPIENTS OF A FIRST KIDNEY 
TRANSPLANT 


Anna Francis, Jonathon Craig  
Data Provided March 17.  


MORTALITY IN CHILDHOOD 
RECIPIENTS OF A FIRST KIDNEY 
TRANSPLANT 


Anna Francis, Jonathon Craig 
Data Provided March 17. 


PAEDIATRIC RENAL 
TRANSPLANTATION OUTCOMES 
BY KDRI 


Gayathri Raman, Anna 
Francis, Jonathon Craig 


Data Provided March 17. 


MTOR INHIBITOR USE AND LONG 
TERM GRAFT OUTCOMES 
 


Gayathri Raman, Sean 
Kennedy  


Data Provided March 17. 


 
INDUCTION THERAPY, REJECTION 
AND GRAFT OUTCOMES 
 


 C MINCHAM, Germaine 
Wong, Sean Kennedy,Nick 
Larkins  


Accepted Transplantation June 


17.  


DONOR/RECIPIENT AGE 
DIFFERENCE AND HLA MATCHING 
AND THEIR IMPACT ON LONG-
TERM PAED TRANSPLANT 
OUTCOMES 


Peter Trnka 
In progress.  


 


Publications past 12 months 


1.Obesity in pediatric kidney transplant recipients and the risks of acute rejection, graft loss and death. 


Ladhani M, Lade S, Alexander SI, Baur LA, Clayton PA, McDonald S, Craig JC, Wong G. Pediatr Nephrol. 2017 


Mar 30. [Epub ahead of print] 


2.Multicentre Study of Treatment Outcomes in Australian Adolescents and Young Adults Commencing 
Dialysis. Krischock L, Kennedy SE, Hayen A. 
Nephrology (Carlton). 2016 Aug 30. [Epub ahead of print] 
 
3. Association Between Slow and Delayed Graft Function with Graft Outcomes in Paediatric and Adolescent 


Deceased Donor Kidney Transplant Recipients. Lim WH, McDonald SP, Kennedy SE, Larkins N, Wong G. 


Transplantation. 2016 Aug 29. [Epub ahead of print] 


4.Long-Term Outcome of Kidney Transplantation in Recipients with Focal Segmental Glomerulosclerosis. 


Francis A, Trnka P, McTaggart SJ. Clin J Am Soc Nephrol. 2016;11(11):2041-2046 


 



https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pubmed/?term=Ladhani%20M%5BAuthor%5D&cauthor=true&cauthor_uid=28361229

https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pubmed/?term=Lade%20S%5BAuthor%5D&cauthor=true&cauthor_uid=28361229

https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pubmed/?term=Alexander%20SI%5BAuthor%5D&cauthor=true&cauthor_uid=28361229

https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pubmed/?term=Baur%20LA%5BAuthor%5D&cauthor=true&cauthor_uid=28361229

https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pubmed/?term=Clayton%20PA%5BAuthor%5D&cauthor=true&cauthor_uid=28361229

https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pubmed/?term=McDonald%20S%5BAuthor%5D&cauthor=true&cauthor_uid=28361229

https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pubmed/?term=Craig%20JC%5BAuthor%5D&cauthor=true&cauthor_uid=28361229

https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pubmed/?term=Wong%20G%5BAuthor%5D&cauthor=true&cauthor_uid=28361229

https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pubmed/28361229

https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pubmed/27575540

https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pubmed/27575540

https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pubmed/?term=Lim%20WH%5BAuthor%5D&cauthor=true&cauthor_uid=27575687

https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pubmed/?term=McDonald%20SP%5BAuthor%5D&cauthor=true&cauthor_uid=27575687

https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pubmed/?term=Kennedy%20SE%5BAuthor%5D&cauthor=true&cauthor_uid=27575687

https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pubmed/?term=Larkins%20N%5BAuthor%5D&cauthor=true&cauthor_uid=27575687

https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pubmed/?term=Wong%20G%5BAuthor%5D&cauthor=true&cauthor_uid=27575687

https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pubmed/27575687

https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pubmed/?term=Francis%20A%5BAuthor%5D&cauthor=true&cauthor_uid=27797890

https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pubmed/?term=Trnka%20P%5BAuthor%5D&cauthor=true&cauthor_uid=27797890

https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pubmed/?term=McTaggart%20SJ%5BAuthor%5D&cauthor=true&cauthor_uid=27797890

https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pubmed/27797890
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PAEDIATRIC NEPHROLOGY WORKFORCE





There has been a marked increase in trainee numbers in paediatric nephrology from 2 to 12 over the past decade. There are 22.77 full time equivalents (FTE) spread across 36 physicians in paediatric nephrology in Australia and New Zealand.



Eleven training positions are accredited by RACP within Australia and New Zealand for between 6 and 18 months. Training can also be accredited from Singapore (National University Hospital), Toronto (Hospital for Sick Children), Vancouver (BC Children’s Hospital) and Great Ormond Street, London, Other overseas sites may be accredited on an individual program basis.  At least 6 months of advanced training must be undertaken in Australia or 3-6 months in New Zealand. Paediatric nephrology trainees must complete 6 months formal training in community paediatrics, adolescent medicine or child psychiatry as part of the 3 yrs. core Nephrology training. 



Ensuring breadth and depth of clinical experience is addressed by core training undertaken in at least 2 centres which often requires trainees to move interstate. Additionally trainees are encouraged to undertake part of Advanced or postFRACP training overseas for 1-2 years. 



There is an uncertainty amongst trainees whether they will secure a tertiary nephrology position within the capital city of their choice. Many have elected to complete advanced training in General paediatrics or other subspecialty (e.g. genetics, pharmacology) concurrently further lengthening of training to or beyond 5 years. Higher research degrees are encouraged and are becoming a requirement for appointment to academic Units.



Anecdotally there has been an increase in the CKD 3+ population due to increase in population, improved recognition and change in community attitudes towards offering renal therapy to infants and young children. Whilst there is no clear trend in the incidence of children requiring renal replacement therapy, the prevalent numbers of children (<17yrs) treated for CKD5 has gradually increased over past 20 years reflecting improved survival.1



Paediatric nephrology is generally delivered in tertiary centres supported in the community by general paediatricians with or without formal nephrology training. Only a few paediatric nephrologists offer consultation in private rooms and to date none practice without fractional appointment in a tertiary centre.



The work profile for most junior paediatric nephrologists (PN) often involves several employment streams of public and private clinical work, research or teaching. Changing clinical profiles with more flexible work practices of consultant nephrologists have led to most trainees being able to secure some work after completion of post RACP clinical training or following research higher degree.



Overseas trained physicians have been recruited on a competitive basis and bring broad perspectives to standard clinical practice. This is particularly valuable within such a small craft group who are at risk of insular practice. The recent changes in immigration policy and visas may limit this valuable opportunity. 



A recent worldwide paediatric nephrology workforce survey2 noted that 54% of respondent  Australian and New Zealand PNs reported a mild to severe surplus of consultants with 90% indicating it to be somewhat, difficult or  very difficult to find a job after training.  Recruitment to training positions however was reported as somewhat to very easy. This contrasts with Europe and US where 42% and 52% respectively, reported a mild to severe shortage of PN and experience difficulties in recruiting to training positions.



An informal survey of Unit Heads recently indicates that consultant workforce numbers are generally well below ideal and international standards due to shortfall in available funding. There may be some opportunities for junior consultants with retirement or changing work practices of more senior colleagues however it is not anticipated that substantial increases in consultant positions will occur unless new funding streams are identified.



		

		Hospital

		Advanced training positions

		Advanced trainees 

		Nephrology consultant positions (EFT)

		Nephrologists



		Sydney

		Westmead Children’s

		1 x 12m & 1x6m

		3

		4.4

		6 (1 across both sites)



		Sydney

		Sydney Children’s

		1 x 12m & 1x6m

		2

		3.4

		5



		Melbourne 

		Royal Children’s

		1 x 12m; 

1x 6m

		1

		2.85

		6



		Melbourne 

		Monash CH

		1x9m

		1

		1.92

		3



		Brisbane

		Lady Cilento

		1 x 12m

		1

		2.5

		4



		Adelaide

		Womens’ & Children’s Hosp

		1 x 6 m

		0

		2.0

		3



		Perth

		Princess Margaret

		1 x 6 m

		1

		1.9

		3-4



		Darwin

		Royal Darwin 

		0

		0

		0.2

		1



		Auckland

		Starship

		1 every 3 years

		2

		3.6

		4



		Completing part of dual RACP training

		

		

		1

		

		



		Singapore

		National University 

		Accredited 12m

		0 (1 in 2015 & 16)

		

		



		Toronto

		Hospital for Sick Children

		Accredited 24m

		2

		

		



		Vancouver

		BC Children’s Hospital

		Accredited 24m

		2

		

		



		London

		Great Ormond Street

		Accredited 24m

		1 

		

		



		Totals ANZ

		

		11 

		12

		22.77

		36



		Totals Overseas

		

		

		5
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Paediatric Nephrology Service Royal Darwin Hospital, Darwin, NT

· Service review: 1x Paediatric Nephrologist. 0.2 FTE, commenced 2017

· Out patient Clinics

· Inpatient Referrals

· Biopsy

· Dialysis

· Protocols and education

· Research

Paediatric Nephrology Clinic


· Established 15th March 2017


See children with CKD (Referrals from Paediatric Urology, Adult Renal Physicians, Paediatricians)


		Patients Seen up to 30th August 2017

		N = 92 



		Clinic first consult 

		55 



		Review 

		37 





		New Patients 

		Diagnosis 



		CAKUT/Neurogenic Bladder/CKD 

		42 



		Nephrotic Syndrome 

		3 



		PSGN 

		3 



		HSP and hypertension 

		1 



		Post- Renal Transplant 

		2 



		Persistent Haematuria 

		3



		Cystic Kidney Disease 

		1 





Chart reviews and maintaining Kidney Kids Database

		Meeting with Paediatric Outreach Nurse every fortnight 

		Each meeting 45min - 1 hr 



		Chart review 

		30-35patients 





Paediatric Nephrology-Inpatient referrals


10 inpatient referrals, Each patient at least seen twice for 15-30 minutes. Most seen > 2 times.

One required Kidney Biopsy 

		Patients 

		Diagnosis 



		CAKUT/Neurogenic Bladder/CKD 

		3 



		PSGN 

		2 



		HSP 

		1 



		Fluid/Severe Electrolyte issues 

		3 



		AKI 

		2





Formal Multidisciplinary meetings (renal agenda)

· 1x Tele Conference with Dr Sam Crafter (Director, Renal Service, WCH, Adelaide and Clinical Mentor for Dr Swasti): discussion on various aspects of Paediatric Nephrology service in NT with various stakeholders (Paediatric surgeons, Adult Renal Service Director, Paediatric Director, Nurse educators) 


· ICU- meeting to help trouble shoot paediatric CRRT: 3 


· Setting up Peritoneal dialysis: 2-3 meetings 


· Continence service: 4- meeting with physiotherapist, nurse educators


· TeleConference with Monash Paediatric Urology/Nephrology service to discuss patients once a month: 3

Education & Research


· Part of LOC for the Paediatric Nephrology Update in September 2017 

· Drafted 1 protocol- acute PD in children


· In process of writing 1 more: Antenatal hydronephrosis-post natal follow up


· Contributed to Paediatric CRRT protocol

· Given Grand round and Lunch time talk

2
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ABSTRACT



Thrombotic microangiopathy (TMA) presents a unique diagnostic and therapeutic challenge for clinicians working across multiple settings and disciplines including primary care, emergency, the medical specialties, obstetrics, paediatrics and intensive care. TMA is a medical emergency that can be rapidly fatal if it is not recognised promptly, its causes investigated, and urgent therapy started. TMA is usually detected based on thrombocytopenia and microangiopathic haemolytic anaemia. End-organ dysfunction may affect the kidneys, brain, gastrointestinal tract, heart and other vital organs. Testing for severely reduced ADAMTS13 activity prior to the commencement of therapeutic plasma exchange is crucial for diagnosing thrombotic thrombocytopenic purpura (TTP), and for separating TTP from complement-mediated atypical haemolytic uraemic syndrome (aHUS). Numerous other conditions are often associated with TMA, including infection, malignancy, drug exposure, transplantation, malignant hypertension, pregnancy/postpartum and disseminated intravascular coagulation. However, in many such cases, both TTP and aHUS remain diagnostic possibilities as the underlying cause of TMA. Here, we outline a point-of-care approach to TMA based on published trials and guidelines. Some of the challenging scenarios that can arise in patients with TMA are discussed, with reference to currently available diagnostic tests and therapies in Australia.

























































I. INTRODUCTION 



Thrombotic microangiopathy (TMA) is a disease process in which platelet aggregation and thrombus formation in small blood vessels causes luminal narrowing or occlusion, producing ischaemia and infarction of end organs. TMA is the result of endothelial injury in the microcirculation, with activation of the complement and/or coagulation systems. End organ dysfunction involves one or multiple organs including (but not limited to) the kidneys, brain, heart, and gastrointestinal tract. TMA is recognized by the presence of (i) thrombocytopenia; (ii) microangiopathic haemolytic anaemia (MAHA) with red cell fragments (schistocytes) on a peripheral blood film; and (iii) clinical and biochemical abnormalities attributable to dysfunction of the specific organs involved. Onset of TMA occurs at all ages from infancy to old age, and can be rapidly fatal if urgent, empirical treatment is not commenced. 



Historically, two overlapping, idiopathic syndromes of TMA were described, thrombotic thrombocytopenic purpura (TTP) (1) and haemolytic uraemic syndrome (HUS) (2). Modern advances in genetics and molecular biology led to a classification system that prioritizes the identification of distinct causes of TMA for which specific treatments are indicated. Current diagnostic tools include: DNA amplification from stool samples of Shiga-toxin produced by Escherichia coli (STEC) in STEC-HUS; serological assessment for reduced activity of the ADAMTS13 (a disintegrin and metalloprotease thrombospondin, number 13) enzyme in TTP; and mutational analysis of complement genes in atypical HUS (aHUS). As numerous other conditions are sometimes associated with TMA, including infection, malignancy, drug exposure, transplantation, malignant hypertension, pregnancy/postpartum and disseminated intravascular coagulation (DIC), these are also considered within the broad ‘differential diagnosis’ of TMA. Some of these TMA-associated conditions arise in patients who also have a genetic or acquired predisposition to TMA, as described in many cases of TTP and aHUS. Thus a key concept in management of TMA is that TTP and aHUS cannot be discounted until the appropriate investigations  have been performed. 

 

Patients may present with TMA to general practitioners, emergency physicians, haematologists, renal physicians, paediatricians and obstetricians. In more extreme cases they may be admitted to intensive care with an undiagnosed but severe systemic illness. The potential for rapid progression to irreversible and life-threatening complications necessitates wide dissemination of knowledge on how to diagnose and commence treatment of TMA, as has occurred for acute myocardial infarction, stroke and meningococcal disease. 



	II. METHODS



To highlight best practice in Australia, a TMA working group (comprising the authors of this document) was formed from amongst nephrologists, haematologists, immunologists and molecular biologists with an interest in the clinical and laboratory aspects of TMA. Input was sought from the societies representing these specialty groups, and in some cases formal endorsement of this document was obtained. The authors performed an online literature search via PubMed for clinical trials and international guidelines using search terms for TMA, TTP and aHUS. Findings from the Australian TMA registry were examined to understand current local practice (3). The statements in this document represent the consensus view of the authors based on responses to questionnaire (modified Delphi method) and review of successive drafts of the manuscript.	Comment by Thomas Barbour: To be specified pending final approvals



III. RECOGNITION OF TMA

Unexplained thrombocytopenia (platelets <150 109/L or >25% fall from baseline) and MAHA (haemoglobin <100 g/L with red cell fragments on a blood film) are generally sufficient for a diagnosis of TMA. Fragments may be rare or even absent in early TMA, but consideration should also  be given to non-microangiopathic causes of anaemia with thrombocytopenia including liver disease, bone marrow infiltration with malignancy, drug toxicity and occult sepsis. In most cases of TMA, raised lactate dehydrogenase (LDH) and other markers of intravascular haemolysis are present, and the clotting profile is normal (Table 1). End-organ dysfunction due to TMA can affect one or multiple organs (Table 2), and is usually present at diagnosis but can on occasion lag behind the haamatological features. In TTP, the classically described diagnostic ‘pentad’ of fever, MAHA, thrombocytopenia, neurological sequelae and renal impairment (4) is now much less common (5), in part reflecting earlier initiation of organ- and life-saving treatment. Biopsy of affected organs is not generally required for confirmation of TMA, but may reveal acute and/or chronic features, for example in the kidney (Table 3). Occasionally, a pathological diagnosis of TMA is made in the absence of MAHA and thrombocytopenia (6). 



IV. CAUSES OF TMA 



STEC-HUS

Shiga toxin secreted by Escherichia coli (STEC) or other bacteria is the commonest cause of TMA with acute kidney injury, especially in children (7), and may also cause neurologic impairment (8). Shiga toxin ingested in contaminated foods crosses from the gut lumen into the bloodstream where it causes direct endothelial injury within the glomerular and cerebral microvasculature. STEC-HUS can occur in isolated cases or in clusters/epidemics. In 1995, an outbreak of STEC-HUS in South Australia was due to contamination of processed meat products, and resulted in one child’s death, with multiple other children affected, including some with permanent renal impairment. The largest epidemic of STEC-HUS occurred in Germany in 2011, when ingestion of contaminated sprouts affected thousands of patients leading to 34 deaths. Adverse outcomes were especially common in adults (9). Although a bloody diarrhoeal prodrome is common in STEC-HUS, it does not reliably distinguish STEC-HUS from other causes of TMA, notably aHUS (in which ‘postdiarrhoeal’ TMA is sometimes observed (10)). 



Pneumococcal HUS

Pneumococcal HUS affects mainly children (11), in whom systemic infection with Streptococcus pneumoniae leads to TMA and associated renal failure. Release of bacterial neuraminidase A exposes a neoantigen (Thomsen-Friedenreich antigen) on host red cells and glomerular endothelium. Specific IgM autoantibodies are believed to mediate agglutination culminating in TMA (typically with a positive direct antiglobulin test). 



TTP

TTP is a rare disease in which TMA involving the brain and other organs can progress rapidly, causing death (12). Pathophysiology of TTP is related to severely reduced activity of the von-Willebrand factor (vWF)-cleaving protease, ADAMTS13. Under physiological conditions, ultra-large vWF multimers are released from endothelial cells before being cleaved into smaller vWF fragments by the circulating ADAMTS13 enzyme. These smaller vWF fragments play a key role in primary haemostasis through their ability to activate platelets in the event of vascular injury. However, in TTP, severely reduced (<10%) ADAMTS13 activity results in accumulation within the microcirculation of the uncleaved, ultra-large vWF multimers, which bind to platelets causing TMA. TTP may be further classified as: 



(i) acquired: due to inhibitory anti-ADAMTS13 autoantibodies (‘inhibitors’) (13, 14). Acquired TTP affects predominantly young women, but can present at all ages. The Australian national TMA registry identified 57 patients with TTP between June 2009 and October 2014, presenting at a median age of 38 years and with a male to female ratio of 1:2.8 (3). Relapse rates in acquired TTP have been estimated at between 20-50% (12).



(ii) congenital: deficient enzyme activity results from ADAMTS13 mutations (<5% of TTP cases) (12, 15). Congenital TTP (Upshaw-Schulman syndrome) is recessively inherited, with more than 130 distinct ADAMTS13 mutations having been identified (16). It may present at any age, and is a relapsing condition often triggered by pregnancy/postpartum or infection (12, 17). Renal failure is sometimes prominent (and hence congenital TTP can present similarly to aHUS).



aHUS

aHUS is a rare disease in which TMA causes prominent, sometimes irreversible, renal failure (7, 18). Nevertheless, it is a multisystem disorder in which cardiac and neurological complications can sometimes be fatal. aHUS is due primarily to uncontrolled activation of the alternative pathway (AP) of complement (6, 19, 20), culminating in formation of the cytolytic membrane attack complex (MAC, C5b-9) on microvascular endothelial cell surfaces. Genetic or acquired abnormalities that enhance AP activation, especially by impairing the function of AP regulators including Factor H (FH), are identified in 40-60% of aHUS patients (21-23). Together with TTP, aHUS can be considered as a primary TMA disorder, since it involves an underlying TMA-specific disease process that can manifest at any age, and can produce clinical relapses even after an initial episode appears to have been successfully treated. However, disease onset of aHUS often awaits an environmental factor to disturb the balance of the complement system, triggering TMA. This is supported by international registry data showing that TMA-precipitating conditions such as infection, drug exposure or pregnancy/postpartum are present at the time of first clinical presentation in 70% of aHUS patients (21). aHUS is often assumed to be more common in children than adults, whereas any differences may be slight (22, 24). For these reasons, aHUS should not be discounted even in older patients presenting with a first episode of TMA. Although a family history compatible with aHUS may suggest the diagnosis, sporadic cases of aHUS (in which a family history is absent) are much more common than familial ones. 



Conditions associated with TMA

TMA can occur in a wide variety of clinical settings including pregnancy/postpartum, medical illness and drug exposure (25, 26) (Tables 4 and 5). Many of these potentially TMA-associated conditions/drugs may directly induce endothelial injury, platelet aggregation, or activation of the complement and/or coagulation systems. The term ‘secondary’ TMA has therefore been used in such cases, to distinguish them from the ‘primary’ TMA disorders of TTP and aHUS. However, separating secondary TMA from a primary disorder can be difficult or even impossible, since one or more TMA-associated conditions/drug exposures is also frequently identified in  TTP or aHUS (e.g. in patients with complement mutations (21, 27)). In such instances, the TMA-associated condition/drug is thought to trigger the onset of aHUS or TTP, which may then become established even when the triggering event/exposure has subsided. It is therefore important in all patients presenting with TMA to consider both precipitating factors for the current episode (e.g. infection, drug toxicity) and the possibility of an underlying diagnosis of TTP or aHUS. 



	V. INVESTIGATION OF TMA



Once TMA is recognised, investigations to determine its cause(s) should be undertaken (Table 6). Serological tests including ADAMTS13 activity and inhibitors, and FH autoantibodies in children, are critical in determining the cause of TMA and directing appropriate treatment. A practical suggestion is to collect a 5mL plasma citrate sample in all patients presenting with TMA for immediate testing (or storage in the laboratory for later testing). The sample must be obtained prior to commencement TPE or plasma infusion, as samples collected after plasma therapy lead to false negative test results due to therapeutic removal/infusion of serum factors. Four key steps in TMA diagnosis are presented below, and diagnosis of specific disorders is discussed in the sections that follow.



1. 	Recognition of TMA 

When there is concomitant thrombocytopenia and anaemia, a peripheral blood film should be requested specifically to look for red cell fragmentation.



2. 	Thorough evaluation for end-organ dysfunction due to TMA 

Physical examination comprises vital signs, examination of skin and cardiovascular, respiratory, gastrointestinal and neurological systems, and urinalysis. Tests should include at a minimum: serum biochemistry including creatinine, LDH and troponin, chest X-ray, and blood group and save for imminent treatment with plasma or blood products.



3.	Assessment for TMA-associated conditions 

Clinical and laboratory evaluation should address commonly encountered TMA-associated conditions including pregnancy/postpartum, infection (which may be low-grade or occult (28)), malignant hypertension and drug exposure. In some cases, the TMA-associated condition may be considered the sole cause of TMA, and in other cases to have ‘triggered’ TMA in a patient with underlying TTP or aHUS. 



4. 	Consideration of TTP and aHUS as the cause of TMA 

ADAMTS13 activity <10% based on a serum sample obtained prior to initiation of plasma therapy is considered diagnostic of TTP. Pending the results of ADAMTS13 activity testing, milder renal failure and greater severity of thrombocytopenia make TTP a more likely diagnosis than aHUS (29, 30) although this is not always the case (31). In children especially, the detection of FH autoantibodies may confirm a diagnosis of aHUS. 



	VI. DIAGNOSIS OF STEC-HUS



Stool PCR of Shiga toxin 1 and 2 in patients presenting with TMA and diarrhoea is generally accurate in the diagnosis of STEC-HUS. A number of methodologies may have different sensitivities, and if a negative result should prompt repeat testing. STEC-HUS is a notifiable disease. 



VII. DIAGNOSIS OF TTP



ADAMTS13 activity

ADAMTS13 activity testing is critical in diagnosing TTP, and in distinguishing TTP from other causes of TMA including aHUS (31). ADAMTS13 activity <10% is considered diagnostic of TTP (3, 32). A number of Australian services provide diagnostic testing of ADAMTS13 activity using an ELISA, and can be contacted in advance for urgent testing (Table 7). Some services also offer ADAMTS13 inhibitor and gene testing. Collection of serum samples for ADAMTS13 activity testing should be performed prior to the initiation of TPE or plasma infusion (12). 



ADAMTS13 antibodies

In patients with ADAMTS13 activity <10%, a negative test for ADAMTS13 autoantibodies obtained from a pre-treatment sample suggests congenital TTP, and should enable immunosuppression and plasmapheresis to be avoided or minimised. Conversely, a positive test for ADAMTS13 antibodies is typical of acquired TTP, where inhibitor titre and persistence may be of prognostic value (33, 34). Infrequent testing of ADAMTS13 antibodies in Australia (16% of patients) has been highlighted as a key area in which broader education and a change in practice is required (3).



ADAMTS13 gene testing

In patients in whom congenital TTP is strongly suspected based on ADAMTS13 activity <10% coupled with a negative test for ADAMTS13 antibodies, sequencing of the ADAMTS13 gene is appropriate. Congenital TTP is recessively inherited, with more than 130 distinct ADAMTS13 mutations having been identified (16). Although testing for ADAMTS13 mutations is not always essential, it may be of particular relevance in pregnancy, where congenital TTP is thought to account for up to 5% of all thrombocytopenia (35).



VIII. DIAGNOSIS OF aHUS 



aHUS as a diagnosis of exclusion 

aHUS (7, 18, 36-38) (or ‘complement-mediated TMA’ (25)) is currently diagnosed based on exclusion of STEC-HUS, TTP, and possibly other conditions associated with TMA (Figure 1). Aside from its crucial role in diagnosis of TTP, ADAMTS13 activity testing is now generally considered mandatory in establishing the diagnosis of aHUS, based on ADAMTS13 activity 10%. Opinions differ as to whether exclusion of STEC-HUS and TTP yields a diagnosis exclusively of aHUS (36), or of either aHUS or secondary TMA (18). As noted above, differentiating aHUS and secondary TMA can be challenging, or even impossible in some cases. For example, it has been suggested that, in addition to STEC-HUS and TTP, various TMA-associated conditions including transplantation, drug exposure and malignant hypertension, should be excluded before aHUS is diagnosed (37, 38). This is despite numerous reports of patients presenting with these and other TMA-associated conditions (ostensibly precluding a diagnosis of aHUS) in whom complement gene variants are subsequently identified (consistent with a diagnosis of aHUS). 



FH autoantibodies

In children especially, aHUS may be due to autoantibodies against FH (usually in association with genetic deficiency of FH-related proteins 1 and 3). An ELISA for FH autoantibodies is available (Table 7) and may also be useful in monitoring response to TPE and/or immunosuppression if this treatment approach is used (see below).



Role of genetic testing in aHUS

Genetic analysis is becoming an important aspect of management of patients and families with aHUS. However, the area is complex and continually evolving, as increasing numbers of genes are identified in association with aHUS, with large numbers of mutations occurring within those genes. Interpretation of genetic tests should be undertaken in consultation with a centre with expertise in aHUS management, as some complement gene variants identified in patients with aHUS are not pathogenic (39). A genetic diagnosis of aHUS cannot currently be made in real-time and hence does not guide treatment decisions during a first presentation of aHUS. Nevertheless, defining a complement mutation provides prognostic information, allows genotype-phenotype correlation, and can be important in later decisions including risk stratification for renal transplantation and possibly duration of eculizumab therapy (see below). As family members of an index case with a heterozygous mutation have a low risk of developing aHUS even if the same genetic variant is present (40), genetic screening of family members is not routinely performed (outside the transplant setting, discussed below).



Even comprehensive genetic testing leaves a significant proportion of patients deemed to have aHUS, yet lacking an identifiable complement gene defect, including some with strong evidence to suggest genetic causation (e.g. a personal or family history of renal TMA). Notably, a number of cases of familial TMA have also been described in association with genetic defects affecting the coagulation cascade (e.g. diacylglycerol kinase epsilon, DGK (41)) and other metabolic pathways ostensibly unrelated to the complement system (e.g. inverted formin 2, INF2 (42)). Thus, notwithstanding the definition here of aHUS as due ‘primarily to uncontrolled complement activation’, the full genetic background to aHUS may be even more complex. In any event, failure to identify a genetic defect does not preclude a diagnosis of aHUS, and the expression aHUS ‘without a known variant’ or ‘of unknown cause’ is commonly used in this setting. 



IX. INITIAL TREATMENT OF TMA 



TMA is a medical emergency. Despite looking initially quite well, patients can deteriorate rapidly in the time taken to arrange TPE, and a sense of urgency must be maintained despite a lack of traditional ‘MET call’ features of critical illness. Whereas optimal therapy ultimately depends on the cause of TMA, the results of diagnostic tests may arrive too late to institute life-saving treatment. For this reason, early treatment of TMA is often empiric (Figure 2) and should be undertaken concurrently with diagnostic testing (20). Five key steps in initial treatment of TMA are summarized below, with evidence regarding treatment of specific disorders presented in the sections that follow.



1. 	Urgent, empirical TPE  

In patients with TTP, TPE is optimal therapy and should be commenced within 4-8 hours of presentation. Delays in commencement of TPE are associated with increased mortality in TTP. For this reason, urgent, empirical TPE should be initiated in all patients presenting with TMA until TTP has been excluded (based on ADAMTS13 activity 10%). Exceptions include adults in whom a diagnosis is made of STEC-HUS (supportive care only) or HELLP syndrome (foetal and placental delivery if antepartum), or where treatment may be considered futile (e.g. active malignancy). Prior to commencing TPE, a blood sample should be obtained for ADAMTS13 activity testing. However TPE should never be delayed whilst awaiting ADAMTS13 or other test results. If TPE is unavailable, plasma infusion can be substituted but should not delay urgent transfer to a centre that offers TPE. In patients with known congenital TTP, plasma infusion rather than TPE is the recommended treatment. 

	

2. 	Eculizumab in aHUS

In patients with aHUS, eculizumab is first-line treatment once TTP has been excluded (based on ADAMTS13 activity 10%). In children presenting with TMA and acute kidney injury, aHUS is more likely than TTP pending the results of ADAMTS13 activity testing. In this cohort, eculizumab is preferred to TPE as empirical management provided STEC-HUS is excluded and pneumococcal HUS also ruled out (antibiotics and supportive care). In children with FH autoantibody-associated aHUS, either eculizumab or an alternative strategy comprising TPE and immunosuppression may be used (see below). In adults, some authors, but not others, would consider eculizumab as alternative empiric treatment to TPE where aHUS appears the most likely diagnosis (eg. prominent renal failure, family history of aHUS). Where eculizumab is preferred as empiric treatment but is not immediately accessible, urgent commencement of TPE should not be delayed in adults in whom TTP has not been formally excluded. In Australia, applications for initial dosing of eculizumab under Pharmaceutical Benefits Scheme (PBS) Section 100 can be approved before the results of ADAMTS13 activity testing are known (https://www.humanservices.gov.au/health-professionals/enablers/atypical-haemolytic-uraemic-syndrome). Eculizumab is not publicly funded in New Zealand. 



3. 	Adjunctive steroids and/or rituximab in acquired TTP

In acquired TTP, steroids should be used in addition to TPE based on the biological plausibility of immune modulation in treatment of autoimmune disease. However, there is limited evidence (and no prospective studies) in support. Rituximab is beneficial in refractory or relapsing acquired TTP, and may be appropriate in initial treatment of severe acquired TTP.



4.  	Treatment/removal of any potential secondary causes or precipitants of TMA 

In all patients with TMA, steps should be taken to minimise potential causes or precipitating factors. This includes administration of antibiotics for non-STEC bacterial infection , antihypertensive therapy in malignant hypertension or scleroderma renal crisis, cessation or dose reduction of TMA-associated drugs, and B12 replacement in children with cobalamin C defect. These measures are occasionally sufficient for resolution of TMA, particularly drug withdrawal e.g. vascular endothelial growth factor (VEGF) inhibitors, intravenous oxycodone, gemcitabine. However, commencement of TPE or eculizumab (for aHUS) should in general not be delayed whilst awaiting a therapeutic response to these measures. 



5. 	Supportive therapy

Supportive measures can include dialysis, ventilatory support, intensive care, and use of blood products (see below). In STEC-HUS, limited retrospective data from the German outbreak suggest that eculizumab and/or TPE (with or without steroids) may not be beneficial beyond supportive therapy (43, 44). , some authors would favour use of TPE or eculizumab for severe extra-renal manifestations of STEC-HUS including seizures, gastrointestinal haemorrhage or cardiac complications. Prospective trials of eculizumab and, following favourable reports during the German outbreak, azithromycin are underway (7). 



X. EVIDENCE FOR TREATMENT OF AHUS



Eculizumab

Eculizumab is a recombinant, humanized monoclonal IgG4 antibody that binds complement C5, preventing its cleavage into C5a (anaphylatoxin) and C5b (required for MAC formation). Data from four prospective, open-label, uncontrolled trials undertaken by the drug manufacturer in over 100 patients support the use of eculizumab as first-line therapy in patients with aHUS (18, 38). The first two trials in adolescents and adults with aHUS included patients with complement mutations, and patients with post-renal transplant recurrent or de novo aHUS. An improvement in clinical status including renal function was demonstrated both in persistent aHUS unresponsive to plasma therapy (TPE or plasma infusion, trial 1) and longstanding aHUS with CKD (trial 2) (45). Clinical benefit was maintained with continuation of eculizumab at 2 years (46). No information was published regarding other TMA-associated conditions at diagnosis, and additional design limitations were discussed in a systematic review (47). The two subsequent studies were conducted in children (48) and adults (49) with aHUS, some of whom had not received prior plasma therapy. Response to therapy in the eculizumab trials was sometimes dramatic. For example, short-term dialysis was ceased in several patients (46), as was also shown in an Australian retrospective cohort study (50). This was followed by case reports in which dialysis, of up to several months’ duration prior to eculizumab therapy, was ceased (37, 51-53).



Risks of eculizumab

Eculizumab creates a susceptibility to meningococcal meningitis due to neutralization of the complement system. Vaccination against Neisseria meningitidis serotypes A, C, W and Y is mandatory in Australia two weeks prior to planned commencement of eculizumab. If treatment is begun within that timeframe, both vaccination and administration of prophylactic antibiotics are mandatory. Even with meningococcal vaccination, there is a risk of potentially fatal infection (54), and prophylactic antibiotics should be used in all vaccinated patients for the duration of eculizumab therapy. Patients and carers should also be counselled about the risk of infection and advised to seek medical attention promptly in case of fever. Use of eculizumab in pregnant women with aHUS has been reported (27), with data from studies in paroxysmal nocturnal haemoglobinuria (PNH) suggesting that eculizumab use may be safe in pregnancy (55). 



Duration of eculizumab

In patients with aHUS who respond to eculizumab, drug discontinuation or reduced dosing frequency is associated with a risk of relapse. However lifelong therapy with eculizumab, as recommended by the manufacturer, costs government-funded health systems including the PBS in Australia many millions of dollars annually. The ability to stop drug safely, at least in selected patients, is desirable as it would reduce not only some of the associated expense, but also the requirement for venous access and the risk of meningococcal infection. Genetic analysis may help to stratify relapse risk (37, 56, 57), although data are limited (58). In time, monitoring of biomarkers may facilitate drug discontinuation or extended dosing intervals. One published strategy consists of  dipstick testing for haemoglobinuria (59), with rapid reinstitution of eculizumab for relapsing disease.



Failure of eculizumab therapy

The reasons for occasional eculizumab failure, based on a number of reports, are not always clear, although it appears that some patients with aHUS may achieve therapeutic effect only at higher doses (37, 60). Some cases of apparent drug resistance have later been shown to involve possible causation of TMA due to STEC-HUS, cobalamin C defect (61), and DGKE (41) or INF2 (42) mutations. Poor response to eculizumab in Japanese patients with PNH has been reported due to a polymorphism in complement C5 that confers resistance to eculizumab binding (62). 



Plasma therapy in aHUS

Use of TPE or plasma infusion may be considered in patients with aHUS as second-line therapy if access to eculizumab is denied or delayed (or there is no treatment response). Retrospective case series from the pre-eculizumab era indicate that the use of TPE often improved haematological parameters, but not longterm aHUS outcomes (21, 22). In the largest, Italian series in adults and children with aHUS, TPE was associated with the development of end-stage kidney disease (ESKD) or death in over half of patients after 3 years (21). Based on these data, and the prospective trials of eculizumab, the recommendation here that eculizumab be used as first-line therapy in  patients with aHUS is in sharp contrast to one recent guideline published in the United States recommending TPE for ‘complement-mediated TMA’, with substitution of eculizumab for TPE only in those patients who are ‘refractory to or dependent on’ TPE (25). One further consideration is that In patients treated empirically with TPE in whom a pre-treatment sample ultimately shows ADAMTS13 activity 10%, a revised diagnosis of aHUS with prompt substitution of eculizumab for TPE should be considered. This is true even when a haematological response to TPE has been observed (as this does not always lead to renal recovery). 



Treatment of FH autoantibody-associated aHUS in children

In children with FH autoantibody-associated aHUS, an alternative treatment approach to eculizumab consists of combined TPE, steroids and immunosuppression (63). Retrospective series indicate that this strategy may be superior to historical outcomes with TPE alone (22, 64). Immunosuppression in children with FH autoantibody-associated aHUS is usually undertaken for 12 months, and compared to eculizumab provides the advantages of fixed term dosing (versus lifelong eculizumab treatment), monitoring of response to therapy based on FH autoantibody titre, avoidance of central venous access and the need for antibiotic prophylaxis and surveillance of meningococcal infection. 



Renal transplantation

In patients with ESKD due to aHUS, recurrence following renal transplantation is common, and is associated with high rates of graft loss, including of successive grafts (21, 65). Certain complement mutations (e.g. FH mutations) carry a higher risk for post-transplant aHUS recurrence and graft loss (whereas the risk of graft loss due to MCP mutations appears low). Introduction of TPE as rescue therapy for recurrent or de novo aHUS post-transplant has not been shown to improve graft survival. Some authors (but not others) consider that prophylactic TPE may reduce the risk of aHUS recurrence post-transplant, noting however that there is only weak evidence from small, retrospective series in support (65). In Australia, approval may be sought for eculizumab as rescue therapy in post-transplant aHUS (https://www.humanservices.gov.au/health-professionals/enablers/atypical-haemolytic-uraemic-syndrome). However, use of preemptive eculizumab to facilitate transplantation in ‘high risk’ aHUS recipients (6, 66) is not currently funded. Living, related-donor transplantation should be considered only if high risk complement variant(s) associated with aHUS in the recipient have been excluded in the related donor (6). As additional genetic risk factors may still not be identified in both recipient and donor, there is some risk of donor nephrectomy will trigger aHUS in the donor. 	Comment by Thomas Barbour: Currently under PBS review



XI.ISSUES IN TRANSFUSION AND THERAPEUTIC PLASMA EXCHANGE



Benefit, timing and duration of TPE

[bookmark: bau0005]In 1991, a small, prospective, randomized trial demonstrated superiority of TPE compared to plasma infusion in treating clinically defined TTP (67). It was unclear whether this superiority related to plasma removal per se or to the infusion of greater volumes of plasma, facilitated by concurrent plasmapheresis (67). Whereas clinically defined TTP had previously been almost universally fatal, the introduction of TPE had led to a dramatic improvement in outcomes, with acute survival exceeding 90% in the trial (67). In acquired TTP, the benefit of TPE relates to removal of pathogenic ADAMTS13 inhibitors and UL-vWF multimers, and possibly also replenishment of ADAMTS13 in infused plasma. TPE should be initiated as soon as possible, based on 1995/6 retrospective data in a small number of patients with clinically defined TTP that showed that delays in treatment were associated with increased mortality and treatment failure (68, 69). Guidelines published in the U.S. refer to initiation of TPE ‘without delay’ in patients with TTP (70), whilst the recommendation presented here that TPE should be commenced ‘within 4-8 hours’ of presentation in patients with MAHA and thrombocytopenia in whom TTP has not been excluded is aligned with guidelines published in the U.K. (12). TPE should be continued daily until at least 2 days after the platelet count has normalized (>150 x 10^9/L) provided there is no other cause for persisting thrombocytopenia  (12, 70). Twice daily TPE can be undertaken in critically ill or refractory patients. Weaning of TPE prior to its cessation has not been shown to be of benefit in TTP (5). 



Types of plasma for TPE

Because cryoprecipitate-deplete plasma (CDP) lacks UL-vWF multimers, it represents a logical choice of fluid replacement in acquired TTP, when compared to fresh frozen plasma (FFP). However, studies have not demonstrated superiority of one or other treatment (67, 71), and both are used for treatment of TTP in Australia. In the UK, current guidelines recommend the use of solvent detergent-treated plasma (SDP) based on lower risks of both allergic/anaphylactic reaction to plasma and transfusion-transmitted infection (12, 72). SDP is not currently available in Australia. Other risks of TPE include hypocalcaemia due to citrate anticoagulant, hypotension and transfusion-associated acute lung injury (TRALI). In pneumococcal HUS, plasma therapy or use of blood products are generally avoided as these may contain antibodies against the Thomsen-Friedenreich antigen.



Platelet transfusions

Early reports of patients with TTP who deteriorated following platelet transfusion have led to a widespread view that platelets should not be transfused for the thrombocytopenia of TTP other than for life-threatening bleeding (73, 74). A systematic review of platelet transfusions in TTP found mixed results, with some studies supporting safety and others showing platelet transfusion-related complications (75). Insertion of a central venous catheter (CVC) for TPE can generally be performed safely even if thrombocytopenia is severe. One recent study recommended that platelets be administered only for severe bleeding, provided this can be done in conjunction with CVC insertion for immediate TPE (76). 



Use of antiplatelet and anticoagulant agents

Data are lacking as to the efficacy of aspirin in TTP. However its use appears to be safe  and and in view of thrombotic nature of the disease, it is reasonable to commence low dose aspirin provided the platelet count is greater than 50 x 109/L (12). In the presence of additional thrombotic risk factors such as immobility and critical illness, a prophylactic dose of low molecular weight heparin is also routinely commenced at this platelet count.  



XII. EVIDENCE FOR RITUXIMAB IN ACQUIRED TTP



Rituximab is a monoclonal antibody to CD20 expressed on mature B lymphocytes. Its use in patients with acquired TTP is ‘off-label’ in Australia, but has some evidence in support, depending on the clinical situation. Patients should not receive rituximab unless prior testing for HBV and HCV is negative.



Refractory disease 

In patients with acquired TTP who do not respond to standard treatment with TPE and steroids, further immunosuppression is warranted. Rituximab has been found to be safe and effective (12, 77). Historically, chemotherapeutic agents such as vincristine and cyclophosphamide, were used with varying efficacy and potential for severe toxicity (12). 



Initial treatment

Immediate/upfront use of rituximab in acquired TTP may reduce relapse rate (78), although the registry-based (retrospective) data supporting this approach were later criticised as regards selection of the historical controls (79). Upfront use of rituximab may be especially worthwhile in patients who present with poor prognostic features (such as neurological or cardiac involvement) (12). 



Prevention of relapse

Some patients have persistently low ADAMTS13 activity following resolution of an acute episode of acquired TTP, of whom a proportion may subsequently relapse. Whether rituximab prevents relapse in this setting has not been clearly demonstrated, and international guidelines are divided between those that do (12) and do not (77, 79) support its use. Where there is early clinical relapse of acquired TTP, rituximab may prevent further relapses (77).



XIII. OTHER TREATMENT OPTIONS IN TTP



Caplacizumab

Caplacizumab is a humanised nanobody which inhibits the interaction between the 
UL-vWF and platelets, and has been shown In small, prospective, randomized, placebo-controlled studies to induce faster resolution of acute TTP episodes (80). An increased risk of mild to moderate bleeding was observed due to caplacizumab (80). Larger studies are currently underway. 



Bortezomib

The first report of successful use of bortezomib in refractory TTP was in an Australian patient in 2013 (81). In a recent UK case series,  5 of 6 refractory TTP patients treated with bortezomib achieved complete remission, although they also received other therapies (82).



Recombinant ADAMTS13

In vitro, this agent restores the VWF-cleaving capacity of congenitally ADAMTS13-deficient plasma, and antagonises ADAMTS13 antibodies in acquired TTP plasma (83, 84). Safety was demonstrated in a study of 15 patients with congenital TTP.



N-acetyl cysteine (NAC)

NAC reduces vWF multimers and vWF:platelet aggregation and collagen binding in vitro (85). Preclinical studies are unsupportive, and both positive and negative case reports have been published.



Splenectomy

Splenectomy for TTP has been associated with significant mortality. Consequently this approach has been limited to severe, refractory patients in whom splenectomy may help to attain remission, based on limited data (86).



XIV. CONCLUSIONS



Clinicians across a wide variety of medical services should be able to recognise TMA. Early treatment decisions are critical, and the algorithms outlined in this document are intended to provide a simple, point-of-care reference. Urgent referral to a hospital-based haematologist and/or other specialists with experience in managing TMA enables potentially life-saving treatment. Urgent, empirical TPE in many patients may necessitate emergent transfer to a centre offering TPE. Investigations to determine the cause(s) of TMA can usually be undertaken concurrently with empirical treatment, including ADAMTS13 activity and other serological assays for which serum samples must be obtained before commencing TPE. As new diagnostic tests and novel therapies are likely to become available, strategies to prevent death and organ failure resulting from TMA will no doubt continue to evolve. Because TMA is rare, capturing data for registries is a key aim in Australia. Key summary points of this document are listed in Table 8.
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TABLES



Table 1: Laboratory features of TMA* 

		MAHA on a peripheral blood film

· red cell fragmentation (schistocytosis)



		· precursor red cells (reticulocytosis)



		Lactate dehydrogenase elevated



		Haptoglobin low



		Bilirubin elevated



		Direct antiglobulin (Coombs’) test negative (with a few exceptions✝) 



		Coagulation screening tests (APTT, INR, fibrinogen) normal (except in DIC, lupus anticoagulant, anticoagulation)	Comment by Thomas Barbour: Erica and Nikky suggests ‘to exclude DIC’ – do we think DIC is a non-TMA condition? 





*Not all features may be present, especially early in a TMA episode

✝Direct antiglobulin test is sometimes positive in pneumococcal HUS, autoimmune diseases, or with prior blood product administration or TPE.	Comment by Thomas Barbour: Or is it more specific for plasma infusion?



Table 2: End-organ dysfunction due to TMA

		Cardiac 

Acute myocardial infarction, cardiomyopathy (heart failure)

Neurological 

Headache, visual disturbance, hyperreflexia, encephalopathy, syncope, focal deficit, seizure, coma

Gastrointestinal 

(Bloody) diarrhoea, vomiting, abdominal pain, melaena, pancreatitis, cholecystitis

Renal 

Oliguria, acute kidney injury, hypertension, haematuria, proteinuria

Skin 

Purpura, petechiae, digital ischaemia

Lungs 

Dyspnoea, pulmonary embolism

Adrenal 

Hypotension

Pregnancy complications

Placental insufficiency, foetal distress







Table 3. Renal biopsy features of TMA

		1. Light microscopy

		

		

		

		



		Acute

		

		

		

		

		



		Thrombi and fragmented red blood cells in glomerular capillaries, arterioles and small arteries



		Endothelial cell swelling

		

		

		



		Ischaemic glomerular tuft

		



		Mesangiolysis



		Chronic

		

		

		

		

		



		Double contours of glomerular capillary wall

Arteriolar or small arterial ‘onion skin’ appearance of intimal fibrosis

		



		2. Immunohistochemistry

		

		

		



		Sparse, nonspecific glomerular complement C3 and immunoglobulin M

Fibrin staining of thrombi

		



		3. Electron microscopy

		

		

		



		Endothelial swelling and subendothelial electron-lucent material (acute)

		



		Duplication of glomerular basement membrane (chronic)







Table 4. Causes of TMA

		1. STEC-HUS - Shiga toxin from E. coli (STEC) and other bacteria

2. Pneumococcal HUS (especially in children))



		3. TTP - acquired and congenital ADAMTS13 deficiency



		4. aHUS – primarily complement dysregulation



		5. TMA-associated conditions



		· non-STEC/non-pneumococcal infection - viral (CMV, HSV, HIV, influenza A H1N1, parvovirus), bacterial or fungal

· pregnancy and postpartum including HELLP syndrome

· malignant hypertension

· autoimmune – systemic lupus erythematosus/scleroderma/antiphospholipid syndrome (including CAPS)



		· DIC



		· transplantation (solid organ and haematopoietic stem cell)



		· drugs (see Table 4)



		· malignancy (solid organ and haematopoietic)



		· pancreatitis



		· vitamin B12 (cobalamin C) defect (mainly in children) and other metabolic disorders (e.g. methionine synthase deficiency, coenzyme Q deficiency)





Abbreviations: HELLP – haemolysis, elevated liver enzymes, low platelets; CAPS – catastrophic antiphospholipid syndrome





Table 5. Drugs associated with TMA.

		Drug class

		Examples



		Antiplatelet

		Ticlopidine



		Antibacterial

		Quinine, penicillin



		Antiviral

		Valacyclovir



		Interferon

		 



		Antitumour

		Gemcitabine, sunitinib, bortezomib, carfilzomib



		Calcineurin inhibitors

		Cyclosporin



		Mammalian target of

		Sirolimus



		    Rapamycin (mTOR) inhibitors

		



		VEGF inhibitors

		Bevacizumab



		Oral contraceptives

		



		Illicit

		Cocaine, intravenous oxycodone









Table 6. Investigations for cause of TMA

		Stool culture and stool Shiga toxin PCR

ADAMTS13 activity 

· if ADAMTS13 activity <10%, then also test for the presence of ADAMTS13 inhibitor



		· If ADAMTS13 activity level <10% and inhibitor is absent, test for ADAMTS13 gene mutation

FH autoantibodies

Complement protein assays e.g. serum C3, C4, sC5b-9, AP WIESLAB, FH and FI levels

Gene sequencing in aHUS: FH, C3, FB, FI, MCP (CD46), FHR1-5, THBD, DGKE

MLPA of FH-FHR genomic region in aHUS    

Fundoscopy (for malignant HT)

Blood cultures, urinary pneumococcal antigen



		Viral serologies including HIV (and HBV prior to rituximab therapy)

Nasopharyngeal swab for viral PCR: influenza



		Coagulation screen (APTT, INR, fibrinogen), D-dimer 



		Serum B12 level (for cobalamin C defect)

β-hCG (pregnancy)



		Autoimmune serologies (ANA, dsDNA, ENAs, lupus anticoagulant, anticardiolipin and anti-2 glycoprotein I antibodies)





Abbreviations: ADAMTS13 –a disintegrin and metalloprotease thrombospondin, number 13; AP – alternative pathway; FH, FI, FB – factors H, I, B; MCP – membrane cofactor protein; FHR – factor H related protein; THBD – thombomodulin; DGKE – diacylglycerol kinase epsilon; MLPA – multiple ligation probe amplification; PCR – polymerase chain reaction.



Table 7. Australian pathology services that offer specialized tests in TMA

		ADAMTS13 activity testing



		Pathology North (Hunter), Lambton, NSW (ph. 02 4921 4417)

South Eastern Area Laboratory Services, Prince of Wales Hospital, NSW (ph. 02 9382 9003)

Monash Medical Centre, Clayton, Victoria (ph. 03 9594 3490)

Royal Brisbane and Women’s Hospital, Queensland (ph. 07 3636 8074)

Fiona Stanley Hospital, WA (ph. 08 6152 2684)



ADAMTS13 autoantibody (inhibitor) testing

Monash Medical Centre, Clayton, Victoria

Pathology North (Hunter), Lambton, NSW (ph. 02 4921 4417)



ADAMTS13 gene testing

Pathology North (Hunter), Lambton, NSW (ph. 02 4921 4417)

		



		

		

		

		



		FH autoantibody testing

		



		The Royal Children's Hospital, Victoria

Hunter Area Pathology Services, Newcastle, NSW (ph. 02 4921 4417)



		

		

		

		



		Complement gene testing

Pathology North (Hunter), Lambton, NSW (ph. 02 4921 4417)

Children’s Hospital, Westmead, NSW









Table 8. Summary of key points on TMA

		All clinicians should be able to recognize thrombotic microangiopathy 

· based on thrombocytopenia and anaemia, with red cell fragments on blood film

· presenting at all ages from infancy to old age



		Thrombotic microangiopathy is a medical emergency for which prompt referral to specialist care is often needed

Urgent, empirical plasma exchange should be started in all patients with TMA

· except in STEC-HUS and pneumococcal HUS

· alternatively, eculizumab (only) if aHUS is the most likely diagnosis



		Serum samples should be collected before starting plasma exchange 











































































FIGURES



Figure 1. Diagnostic algorithm for TMA



[image: ]

















































Figure 2. Treatment algorithm for TMA including TTP and aHUS

 [image: ]    

*   Or possibly eculizumab if aHUS is considered most likely

† Exceptions: STEC-HUS, pneumococcal HUS, HELLP, active malignancy, certain drug exposures (e.g. VEGF inhibitors, intravenous oxycodone, gemcitabine)

‡ Alternatively, in children with FH autoantibody-associated aHUS, TPE and immunosuppression



image1.tiff

Thrombocytopenia

Microangiopathic haemalytic
anaemia (MAHA)

Evaluate ADAMTS13 acti

vty and stool Shiga toxin

l

ADAMTS13 activity <10%

ADAMTS13 activity 210%

shiga toxin positive

o> doge @







image2.emf





Eculizumab	in	aHUS‡,	and	empirically	in	all	
children	with	TMA	and	acute	kidney	injury†	




Adjunctive	therapy	in	acquired	TTP	
(steroids	and/or	rituximab)




Urgent	TPE	in	TTP,	and	empirically	in	all	adults	
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Targeted	therapy	stratified	by	diagnosis
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Website	–	www.acah.org.au		
Email	–	admin@acah.org.au		


	


	


	


	


The	History	
Many	paediatricians	had	felt	for	some	time	that	a	
professional	voice	on	behalf	of	the	needs	of	children	in	
Australia	was	needed.	The	Paediatric	Division	of	the	
RACP,	in	2013,	established	a	working	group	to	explore	
options	to	enable	greater	autonomy	for	the	profession	
of	paediatrics	into	the	future.	This	working	group	met	
by	teleconference	on	eight	occasions.	


The	RACP	agreed	to	support	further	consideration	of	
the	Academy	model,	supported	the	development	of	a	
business	plan	for	the	Academy,	and	agreed	to	provide	
initial	funding	to	enable	the	establishment	of	the	
Academy.		A	working	group	comprising	5	paediatricians	
was	formed	in	2016	to	advance	this	initiative.		


Progress		
The	working	group,	with	the	support	of	a	part	time	
executive	officer	worked	to	develop	the	principal	
purposes	of	the	organisation	and	draft	the	initial	
constitution.	This	was	finalised	in	December	2016.	The	
constitution	is	available	for	viewing	on	the	website	
www.acah.org.au.	The	Academy	of	Child	and	
Adolescent	Health	was	incorporated	as	a	not	for	profit	
company	on	14th	December	2016.		


Inaugural	Board	of	Directors	
Upon	the	formation	of	ACAH	as	a	not	for	profit	
company,	the	working	party	of	5	paediatricians	
transitioned	to	become	the	inaugural	Board	of	
Directors.		They	are:	


Kevin	Forsyth	–	Chair	
Gervase	Chaney	–	Secretary	
Jenny	Proimos	–	Treasurer	
Frank	Oberklaid	–	Director	
Peter	Procopis	–	Director	


These	Directors	will	continue	to	hold	office	until	the	1st	
AGM	later	in	2017	


Future	work	
The	inaugural	Board	intends	to	liaise	with	specialty	
paediatric	organisations	and	other	key	stakeholders,	
both	nationally	and	internationally,	to	discuss	mutual	
goals	and	means	of	working	collaboratively	to	progress	
the	health	and	well-being	of	infants	children	and	
adolescents.	


	


ACAH	PRINCIPLE	AIM	


TO	PROMOTE	THE	HEALTH	AND	WELLBEING	


OF	EVERY	NEWBORN,	CHILD	AND	YOUNG	
PERSON	IN	ORDER	THAT	THEY	MAY	REACH	


THEIR	MAXIMUM	POTENTIAL.	


ACAH	Constitution	December	2016	


Official	launch	
ACAH	will	hold	its	official	launch	on	1st	&	2nd	March	
2018	at	The	Royal	Children’s	Hospital,	Melbourne.	
There	will	be	a	2-day	program	of	key	note	speakers	
and	discussion	forums.	
If	you	are	interested	and	wish	to	have	input	into	the	
content	of	the	program	follow	the	link	on	the	
website	to	the	survey	or	paste	the	following	link	into	
your	browser	to	answer	a	few	short	questions.	


https://www.surveymonkey.com/r/KF8RKKF	


	


	


BECOME	A	FOUNDATION	MEMBER	


ACAH	Foundation	memberships	are	now	being	
offered.	Go	to	www.acah.org.au	to	find	out	more.	
Ordinary	memberships	will	be	available	later	in	
2017.		
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Paediatric Nephrology Trainee Education Programme





Currently….

13 paediatric nephrology trainees (Australia, NZ, Canada and London)

Lack of a regular formal education programme

Lack of opportunity for trainees to meet and network with one another.







Aims 

Formalised education programme for ANZPNA trainees

Improve networking among trainees 

Sharing of resources between centres 





Education programme 2017

Monthly webinar sessions

Given by a nephrologist (ANZPNA member)

60 minutes

Session is recorded for trainees that miss the session due to work commitments or time difference





Education programme 2017

		Month		Speaker		Topic

		March		Joshua Kausman		Transplant Immunology

		April		Mandy Walker		Antenatal diagnosis of renal disease

		May		Cherry Mammen		Acute Kidney Injury

		June		Lilian Johnstone		Bladder dysfunction and incontinence

		July		Anna Francis		Cancer post transplantation

		August		Hugh McCarthy		Cystic Kidney Disease

		September		Siah Kim		Peritoneal Dialysis

		October		David Metz		Tubulopathy

		November		Cathy Quinlan		Chronic Kidney Disease and Management









What does the trainees think of the sessions?

100% of trainees (who attended the sessions) felt that the webinar

helped improved knowledge on the topics discussed 

sessions were relevant to trainees

were specific to paediatric nephrology













Resource Sharing











How about the educators (nephrologist)?









Moving forward…









Can we continue to provide this education programme? - Educators













Financial support

Webinar Platform

Video Platform – for web hosting





Zoom Conference

Zoom Pro:

Host up to 100 participants

Unlimited meeting duration

Screen Sharing

Recording capabilities - 1G of MP4 or M4A cloud recording

Usable with any device –Windows/Mac/Android/iOs



A$20.99/month (A$17.49/month for annual = A$209.90)







Trainees Corner – password protected







Video Hosting

Vimeo Plus – A$9/mo (A$108.00)

5GB/week storage  with advanced privacy

Vimeo Pro – A$24/mo (A$288.00)

20GB/week storage with professional privacy 
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31st July 2017 


 


Ms Karen Hall 


Director 


Specialised Supply Section 


Pharmaceutical Access Branch 


Department of Health 


GPO Box 9848, CANBERRA  ACT  2601 


Office location:  10th Floor, Sirius Building || MDP: 1011 


 


 


Dear Ms Hall 


 


RE: PBAC minor submission from Australasia Paediatric Endocrine Group (APEG) 


and Australia and New Zealand Paediatric Nephrology Association (ANZPNA) in 


relation to PBS Growth Hormone Programme guidelines. 


 


Following the initial application for amendment of the entitlements for growth 


hormone for specific specialty patient groups in Dec, 2015 and a subsequent approval 


in July 2016, I have not been made aware of advancement of the proposed changes. 


This has caused significant concerns to members of our society as the lack of access 


to growth hormone to certain individuals has been seen as directly contributing to 


prolonged dialysis due to inadequate growth to allow listing for kidney 


transplantation. This has direct implications for morbidity and mortality in this patient 


group. 


 


I would be grateful for an update on the current situation in implementing the 


proposed changes to the PBAC listing for growth hormone at your earliest 


convenience. Please feel free to contact me by email or telephone. 


 


 


Yours sincerely, 


 
 


Dr. Joshua Kausman, MBBS FRACP PhD 


Chair, ANZPNA, 


Department of Nephrology, The Royal Children's Hospital Melbourne  


50 Flemington Road   |   Parkville   |   3052   |  VIC  


Email: Joshua.Kausman@rch.org.au 


Tel: 03 9345-5054 



mailto:Joshua.Kausman@rch.org.au
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